Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 50 of 136

Exhibit 5

Text of the Proposed Rule Change

AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, INC.

Entire document, including title, deleted

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 51 of 136

AMENDED AND RESTATED CONSTITUTION

OF

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, INC.

(serving also as the Bylaws of the Corporation)

Entire document, including title, deleted

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 52 of 136

All text below is new

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE HOLDINGS, INC.

The undersigned, for the purpose of organizing a corporation under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, certifies:

FIRST: The name of the corporation is International Securities Exchange Holdings, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation").

SECOND: The address of the Corporation's registered office in the State of Delaware is 9 East Loockerman Street, Suite 1B, in the City of Dover, County of Kent, Delaware 19901. The name of its registered agent at such address is National Registered Agents, Inc.

THIRD: The purpose of the Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (hereinafter referred to as the "GCL").

FOURTH: The total number of shares of all classes of capital stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is one hundred and fifty million one hundred thousand (150,100,000) shares, which shall be divided as follows: one hundred fifty million (150,000,000) shares of Common Stock, par value \$.01 per share (the "Common Stock") and one hundred thousand (100,000) shares of preferred stock, par value \$.01 per share (hereinafter referred to as the "Preferred Stock"). The powers, designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights (and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof) of the Common Stock and the Preferred Stock are as follows:

I. Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors of the Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the "Board of Directors") is hereby expressly authorized at any time, and from time to time, to create and provide for the issuance of shares of Preferred Stock in one or more series and, by filing a certificate pursuant to the GCL (hereinafter referred to as a "Preferred Stock Designation"), to establish the number of shares to be included in each such series, and to fix the designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights of the shares of each such series and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, as shall be stated and expressed in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issue thereof adopted by the Board of Directors, including, but not limited to, the following:

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 53 of 136

(a) the designation of and the number of shares constituting such series, which number the Board of Directors may thereafter (except as otherwise provided in the Preferred Stock Designation) increase or decrease (but not below the number of shares of such series then outstanding);

- (b) the dividend rate for the payment of dividends on such series, if any, the conditions and dates upon which such dividends shall be payable, the preference or relation which such dividends, if any, shall bear to the dividends payable on any other class or classes of or any other series of capital stock, the conditions and dates upon which such dividends, if any, shall be payable, and whether such dividends, if any, shall be cumulative;
- (c) whether the shares of such series shall be subject to redemption by the Corporation, and, if made subject to such redemption, the times, prices and other terms and conditions of such redemption;
- (d) the terms and amount of any sinking fund provided for the purchase or redemption of the shares of such series;
- (e) whether or not the shares of such series shall be convertible into or exchangeable for shares of any other class or classes of, any other series of any class or classes of capital stock of, or any other security of, the Corporation or any other corporation, and, if provision be made for any such conversion or exchange, the times, prices, rates, adjustments and any other terms and conditions of such conversion or exchange;
- (f) the extent, if any, to which the holders of the shares of such series shall be entitled to vote as a class or otherwise with respect to the election of directors or otherwise;
- (g) the restrictions, if any, on the issue or reissue of shares of the same series or of any other class or series;
- (h) the amounts payable on and the preferences, if any, of the shares of such series in the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation; and
- (i) any other relative rights, preferences and limitations of that series.

II. Common Stock

The Common Stock shall be subject to the express terms of any series of Preferred Stock set forth in the Preferred Stock Designation relating thereto.

(a) Voting Rights. Each holder of Common Stock shall have one vote in respect of each share of Common Stock held by such holder of record on the books of the Corporation on each matter on which the holders of Common Stock shall be entitled to vote.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 54 of 136

The voting rights of each holder of Common Stock are subject to the limitations thereon provided in subdivision III of Article FOURTH.

- (b) Dividend Rights. The holders of shares of Common Stock shall be entitled to receive, when and if declared by the Board of Directors, out of the assets of the Corporation which are by law available therefor, dividends payable either in cash, in stock or otherwise.
- (c) Liquidation Rights. Upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, holders of Common Stock shall be entitled to receive any amounts available for distribution after the payment of, or provision for, obligations of the Corporation and any preferential amounts payable to holders of any outstanding shares of Preferred Stock.

III. Limitations on Transfer/Concentration and Voting Limits

As used in this Certificate of Incorporation, the term "Person" shall mean an individual, partnership (general or limited), joint stock company, corporation, limited liability company, trust or unincorporated organization, or any governmental entity or agency or political subdivision thereof; the term "Related Persons" shall mean (1) with respect to any Person, any executive officer (as defined under Rule 3b-7 under the Exchange Act), director, general partner, manager or managing member, as applicable, and all "affiliates" and "associates" of such Person (as such terms are defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act); (2) with respect to any Person constituting an Exchange Member (as such term is defined in the Constitution of International Securities Exchange, LLC, a copy of which will be provided to any stockholder of the Corporation upon written request therefor), any broker or dealer with which such Exchange Member is associated; (3) with respect to any Person that is an executive officer (as defined under Rule 3b-7 under the Exchange Act), director, general partner, manager or managing member of a company, corporation or similar entity, such company, corporation or entity, as applicable; and (4) any two or more Persons that have any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) to act together for the purpose of acquiring, voting, holding or disposing of shares of the capital stock of the Corporation; and the term "beneficially owned" and derivative or similar words shall have the meaning set forth in Regulation 13D-G under the Exchange Act.

- (a) Ownership Limits. For so long as the Corporation shall control, directly or indirectly, International Securities Exchange, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation ("ISE, LLC"):
- (i) No Person, either alone or together with its Related Persons, may own, directly or indirectly, of record or beneficially shares of the capital stock (whether common or preferred stock) of the Corporation constituting more than forty percent (40%) of the outstanding shares of any class or series of capital stock of the Corporation.
 - (A) Notwithstanding the foregoing and subject to clause (C) below, such restriction shall not apply in the case of any class of preferred stock which shall not have the right by its terms to vote in the election of members of the Board of Directors or on other matters which may require the approval

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 55 of 136

of the holders of voting shares of the Corporation (other than matters affecting the rights, preferences or privileges of said class of preferred stock).

- (B) Notwithstanding the foregoing and subject to clause (C) below, such restriction may be waived by the Board of Directors pursuant to an amendment to the Bylaws adopted by the Board of Directors, if, in connection with the adoption of such amendment, the Board of Directors in its sole discretion adopts a resolution stating that it is the determination of such Board that such amendment (1) will not impair the ability of any of the Corporation and ISE, LLC to carry out ISE, LLC's functions and responsibilities as an "exchange" under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules promulgated thereunder (the "Exchange Act"); (2) is otherwise in the best interests of the Corporation and its stockholders and ISE, LLC; and (3) will not impair the ability of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") to enforce the Exchange Act, and such amendment shall not be effective until approved by the Commission.
- (C) Notwithstanding clauses (A) and (B), above, in any case where a Person either alone or together with its Related Persons would own more than the above percentage limitation upon consummation of any proposed sale, assignment or transfer of the Corporation's capital stock, the Board of Directors shall have determined that such Person and its Related Persons are not subject to any applicable "statutory disqualification" (within the meaning of Section 3(a)(39) of the Exchange Act).
- (D) In making the determinations referred to in clauses (B) and (C) above, the Board of Directors may impose on the Person in question and its Related Persons such conditions and restrictions as it may in its sole discretion deem necessary, appropriate or desirable.
- (E) Any Person (and its Related Persons owning any capital stock of the Corporation) which proposes to own, directly or indirectly, of record or beneficially shares of the capital stock (whether common or preferred stock) of the Corporation constituting more than forty percent (40%) of the then outstanding shares of any class or series of capital stock of the Corporation, shall have delivered to the Board of Directors a notice in writing, not less than forty-five (45) days (or any shorter period to which said Board shall expressly consent) before the proposed acquisition of shares of capital stock (whether common or preferred) that would result in such Person holding more than forty percent (40%) of the then outstanding shares of any class or series of capital stock of the Corporation.
- (ii) No Person, either alone or together with its Related Persons, who is an Exchange Member, may own, directly or indirectly, of record or beneficially shares constituting more than twenty percent (20%) of the then outstanding shares of any class or series of capital stock of the Corporation.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 56 of 136

- (iii) Any Person, either alone or together with its Related Persons, that at any time owns (whether by acquisition or by a change in the number of shares outstanding) of record or beneficially, whether directly or indirectly, five percent (5%) or more of the then outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation, that has the right by its terms to vote in the election of members of the Board of Directors, shall, immediately upon so owning five percent (5%) or more of the then outstanding shares of such stock, give the Board of Directors written notice of such ownership of five percent (5%) or more of the then outstanding shares of such stock, which notice shall state: (1) such Person's full legal name; (2) such Person's title or status and the date on which such title or status was acquired; (3) such Person's approximate ownership interest in the Corporation; and (4) whether such Person has the power, directly or indirectly, to direct the management or policies of the Corporation, whether through ownership of securities, by contract or otherwise.
- (iv) Each Person required to provide written notice pursuant to subparagraph (iii) of this subdivision III of Article FOURTH shall update such notice promptly after any change therein; provided that no such updated notice shall be required to be provided to the Board of Directors in the event of an increase or decrease of less than one percent (1%) (of the then outstanding shares of any class or series of capital stock) in the ownership percentage so reported (such increase or decrease to be measured cumulatively from the amount shown on the last such report) unless any increase or decrease of less than one percent (1%) results in such Person so owning more than twenty percent (20%) or more than forty percent (40%) of the shares of any class or series of capital stock then outstanding (at a time when such Person so owned less than such percentages) or such Person so owning less than twenty percent (20%) or less than forty percent (40%) of the shares of any class or series of capital stock then outstanding (at a time when such Person so owned more than such percentages).
- Voting Rights. (i) For so long as the Corporation shall control, directly or indirectly, ISE, LLC, no Person, either alone or together with its Related Persons, at any time, may, directly, indirectly or pursuant to any voting trust, agreement, plan or other arrangement, vote or cause the voting of shares of the capital stock (whether such shares be common stock or preferred stock) of the Corporation or give any consent or proxy with respect to shares representing more than twenty percent (20%) of the voting power of any class or series of the then issued and outstanding capital stock of the Corporation, nor may any Person, either alone or together with its Related Persons, enter into any agreement, plan or other arrangement with any other Person, either alone or together with its Related Persons, under circumstances which would result in the shares of capital stock of the Corporation which shall be subject to such agreement, plan or other arrangement not being voted on any matter or matters or the withholding of any proxy relating thereto, where the effect of such agreement, plan or other arrangement would be to enable any Person, either alone or together with its Related Persons, to vote, possess the right to vote or cause the voting of shares of the capital stock of the Corporation which would, as a result thereof, represent more than twenty percent (20%) of said voting power; provided, however, that such restriction may be waived by the Board of Directors pursuant to an amendment to the Bylaws adopted by the Board of Directors, if, in connection with the adoption of such amendment, the Board of Directors in

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 57 of 136

its sole discretion adopts a resolution stating that it is the determination of such Board that such amendment will not impair the ability of any of the Corporation and ISE, LLC to carry out ISE, LLC's functions and responsibilities as an "exchange" under the Exchange Act, is otherwise in the best interests of the Corporation and its stockholders and ISE, LLC, will not impair the ability of the Commission to enforce the Exchange Act, and that such Person and its Related Persons are not subject to any applicable "statutory disqualification" (within the meaning of Section 3(a)(39) of the Exchange Act). In making the determinations referred to in the immediately preceding sentence, the Board of Directors may impose on the Person in question and its Related Persons such conditions and restrictions as it may in its sole discretion deem necessary, appropriate or desirable in furtherance of the objectives of the Exchange Act. Such amendment shall not be effective until approved by the Commission. Any Person (and its Related Persons owning any capital stock of the Corporation) which proposes to exercise voting rights, or grant any proxies or consents with respect to any shares exceeding such twenty percent (20%) limitation shall have delivered to the Board of Directors a notice in writing, not less than forty-five (45) days (or any shorter period to which said Board shall expressly consent) before the proposed exercise of said voting rights or the granting of said proxies or consents, of its intention to do so.

- (ii) Subparagraph (b)(i) of this subdivision III of Article FOURTH shall not apply to any solicitation of any revocable proxy from any stockholder of the Corporation by the Corporation or by any stockholder of the Corporation that is conducted pursuant to, and in accordance with, Regulation 14A promulgated pursuant to the Exchange Act; provided, however, that subparagraph (b)(i) of this subdivision III of Article FOURTH shall apply to any such solicitation that is conducted pursuant to Rule 14a-2(b)(2) of Regulation 14A.
- (iii) Notwithstanding any other provisions contained in this Certificate of Incorporation, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any shares of capital stock of the Corporation (whether such shares be common stock or preferred stock) not entitled to be voted due to the restrictions set forth in subparagraph (b)(i) of subdivision III of Article FOURTH (and not waived by the Board of Directors and approved by the Commission pursuant to subparagraph (b)(i) of subdivision III of Article FOURTH above) shall not be deemed to be outstanding for purposes of determining a quorum or a minimum vote required for the transaction of any business at any meeting of stockholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, when specified business is to be voted on by a class or a series voting as a class.
- (c) Effect of Purported Transfers of Shares and Other Events in Violation of this Subdivision. If, notwithstanding the other provisions contained in this subdivision III of Article FOURTH, at any time, there is a purported transfer or other event such that any Person, either alone or together with its Related Persons, would beneficially own shares in excess of any of the relevant ownership limitations set forth in this subdivision III of Article FOURTH, then, except as otherwise provided herein, such shares in excess of the relevant ownership limitations shall constitute "Excess Shares" and shall be treated as provided in this section. Such designation and treatment shall be effective as of the close of business on the business day prior to the date of the purported transfer or other event. Where such Person beneficially owns shares together with one or more Related Persons and the shares held by

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 58 of 136

such Related Persons are designated as Excess Shares, the designation of shares held by such Person and such Related Persons as Excess Shares shall be pro rata in accordance with the number of shares held by each. If the Corporation accepts any offer pursuant to Article FOURTH, Subdivision III(c)(vii) below, the Corporation shall forthwith determine the additional number of shares, if any, that become Excess Shares by reason of the reduction in outstanding shares caused by the Corporation's purchase of Excess Shares (whether any Person, either alone or together with its Related Persons, holds such Excess Shares in connection with a purported transfer or is deemed to hold such Excess Shares as the result of the Corporation's purchase of Excess Shares) and shall take all action reasonably necessary to ensure that such additional Excess Shares are added to the initial number of Excess Shares subject to the provisions of this Article FOURTH, Subdivision III(c).

- (i) Any sale, transfer, assignment or pledge that, if effective would result in any Person, either alone or together with its Related Persons, owning shares in excess of any of the ownership limits set forth in this subdivision III of Article FOURTH shall be void ab initio as to such Excess Shares, and the intended transferee shall acquire no rights in such Excess Shares. Any Person, either alone or together with its Related Persons, owning shares in excess of any of the ownership limits set forth in this subdivision III of Article FOURTH as a result of any event other than a sale, transfer, assignment or pledge shall forthwith cease to have any rights in such Excess Shares.
- (ii) Upon any purported transfer or other event that results in Excess Shares, such Excess Shares shall be deemed to have been transferred to the Corporation (or to an entity appointed by the Corporation that is unaffiliated with the Corporation and any Person or its Related Persons owning such Excess Shares), as Special Trustee (as defined below) of the Charitable Trust (as defined below) for the exclusive benefit of the Charitable Beneficiary or Beneficiaries. Excess Shares so held in trust shall be issued and outstanding shares.
- (iii) Excess Shares shall be entitled to dividends or other distributions which shall be paid to the Special Trustee for the exclusive benefit of the Charitable Beneficiary. Any dividend or other distribution paid prior to the discovery by the Corporation that the shares had become Excess Shares shall be repaid to the Special Trustee and held for the exclusive benefit of the Charitable Beneficiary. Any dividend declared and unpaid shall be void ab initio as to the purported transferee or holder and shall be paid to the Special Trustee for the exclusive benefit of the Charitable Beneficiary.
- (iv) Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock, in the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of, or any other distribution of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation, the Special Trustee, as the holder of Excess Shares, shall be entitled to receive ratably with each holder of the same class or series of stock, a portion of the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to the stockholders. The Special Trustee shall distribute any such assets received in respect of the Excess Shares in any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of, or any distribution of the assets of the Corporation in

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 59 of 136

accordance with the priorities and limitations set forth herein and as if such assets were the proceeds from the disposition of the Excess Shares with respect to which the distribution is received.

- Shares shall not be entitled to vote such Excess Shares on any matter, and the Special Trustee shall have the authority (A) to rescind as void any votes cast by a purported transferee or holder prior to the discovery that such shares should be transferred to the Special Trustee and (B) to recast such vote in accordance with the desires of the Special Trustee acting for the benefit of the Corporation; provided however, that if the Corporation has already taken irreversible action, then the Special Trustee shall not have the authority to rescind and recast such vote. The Special Trustee shall be deemed to have been given an irrevocable proxy by such holder of Excess Shares to vote the shares for the benefit of the Charitable Beneficiary. Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, until the Corporation has received notification that shares have been transferred into a Charitable Trust, the Corporation shall be entitled to rely on its share transfer and other records for purposes of preparing lists of stockholders entitled to vote at meetings, determining the validity and authority of proxies and otherwise conducting stockholder votes.
- Excess Shares shall not be transferable except in a transfer to which the Special Trustee is a party. Within twenty (20) days of receiving notice from the Corporation that shares have been transferred to a Charitable Trust, the Special Trustee shall sell the shares held in Charitable Trust to a person or persons, designated by the Special Trustee or in market transactions, whose ownership of shares is not expected to violate the ownership limitations in this subdivision III of Article FOURTH. Upon such sale, the interest of the Charitable Beneficiary in the shares sold shall so terminate and the Special Trustee shall distribute the net proceeds of the sale to the purported transferee or holder and to the Charitable Beneficiary as provided herein. The purported transferee or holder will receive the lesser of (A) the price per share received by the Corporation from the transfer of the Excess Shares, (B) the price per share such purported transferee or holder paid for the shares in the purported transfer or other event that resulted in the Excess Shares, or (C) if the purported transferee or holder did not give value for such Excess Shares in the event resulting in the Excess Shares, a price per share equal to the Market Price (as defined below) for the Excess Shares on the date of the purported transfer or other event that resulted in the Excess Shares; provided, that in the case of a purported holder holding Excess Shares solely as the result of an action or event by the Corporation (such as an action resulting in a reduction in the number of outstanding shares), such purported holder will receive the greater of (A) or (C) above.

Any proceeds in excess of the amount payable to the purported transferee or holder shall be payable to the Charitable Beneficiary. If, prior to the discovery by the Corporation that shares should be transferred to a Charitable Trust, such shares are sold by a purported transferee or holder, then (A) such shares shall be deemed to have been sold on behalf of the Charitable Trust and (B) to the extent that the purported transferee or holder received an amount for such shares that exceeds the amount that

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 60 of 136

such purported transferee or holder was entitled to receive pursuant to this section, such excess shall be paid to the Special Trustee of the Charitable Trust upon demand.

(vii) Excess Shares shall be deemed to have been offered for sale to the Corporation on the date of the transaction or event resulting in such Excess Shares (including any shares deemed to be Excess Shares pursuant to Article FOURTH, Subdivision III(c) above) at a price per share equal to the lesser of (A) the price per share such purported transferee or holder paid for the shares in the purported transfer or other event that resulted in the Excess Shares (or in the case of an event not involving any payment, the Market Price at the time of such transfer or other event) and (B) the Market Price of the shares on the date the Corporation accepts such offer. The Corporation shall have the right to accept such offer, in whole or in part, until the Special Trustee has sold the shares held in the Charitable Trust pursuant to Article FOURTH, Subdivision III(c)(vi).

For purposes of this subsection, "Charitable Beneficiary" shall mean one or more organizations described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A) or 170(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time; the term "Charitable Trust" shall mean the trust established for the benefit of the Charitable Beneficiary pursuant to this section for which the Corporation is the trustee; the term "Market Price" shall mean, the last reported sale price of, or the average of the closing bid and asked prices for, the shares, on the trading day immediately preceding the relevant date as reported in any exchange or quotation system over which the shares may be traded, or if not then traded over any exchange or quotation system, then the fair market value of the shares on the relevant date as determined in good faith by the Corporation; the term "Special Trustee" shall mean the Corporation, in its capacity as trustee for the Charitable Trust, any entity appointed by the Corporation that is unaffiliated with the Corporation and any Person or its Related Persons owning such Excess Shares, and any successor trustee appointed by the Corporation.

- (d) Effect of Purported Voting in Violation of this Subdivision. If any stockholder purports to vote, grant any proxy or enter into any other agreement for the voting of shares that would violate the provisions of this subdivision III of Article FOURTH, then the Corporation shall not honor such vote, proxy or agreement to the extent that such provisions would be violated, and any shares subject thereto shall not be entitled to be voted to the extent of such violation.
- (e) Priority of National Securities Exchange or Association Transactions. Notwithstanding anything in this subdivision III of Article FOURTH to the contrary, nothing herein shall preclude the settlement of a transaction entered into through the facilities of any national securities exchange or national securities association. The fact that the settlement of any transaction occurs shall not negate the effect of any other provision of this subdivision III of Article FOURTH and any transferee in such a transaction shall be subject to all of the provisions and limitations set forth in this subdivision III of Article FOURTH.

FIFTH: (a) The number of directors of the Corporation, one (1) of which shall be such person who is currently holding the office of President and Chief Executive

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 61 of 136

Officer of the Corporation, shall be fixed, and may be increased or decreased from time to time, in such a manner as may be prescribed by the Bylaws of the Corporation.

(b) The directors, other than the President and Chief Executive Officer or those who may be elected by the holders of any series of Preferred Stock or any other series or class of stock as set forth in this Certificate of Incorporation, shall be divided into two classes, designated as Class I and Class II. Class I directors shall be initially appointed for a term expiring at the first annual meeting of stockholders and Class II directors shall be initially appointed for a term expiring at the second annual meeting of stockholders.

Members of each class shall hold office until their successors are elected and qualified. Thereafter, at each succeeding annual meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation, the successors of the class of directors whose term expires at that meeting shall be elected to hold office for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders held in the second year following the year of their election, and until their successors are elected and qualified. The President and Chief Executive Officer shall serve as a director for a term of one (1) year or until such earlier time as such person no longer serves as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. Any director may be removed from office at any time, but only for cause by the stockholders to the extent permitted under applicable law.

SIXTH: The Board of Directors is hereby authorized to create and issue, whether or not in connection with the issuance and sale of any of its stock or other securities or property, rights entitling the holders thereof to purchase from the Corporation shares of stock or other securities of the Corporation or any other corporation, recognizing that, under certain circumstances, the creation and issuance of such rights could have the effect of discouraging third parties from seeking, or impairing their ability to seek, to acquire a significant portion of the outstanding securities of the Corporation, to engage in any transaction which might result in a change of control of the Corporation or to enter into any agreement, arrangement or understanding with another party to accomplish the foregoing or for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting or disposing of any securities of the Corporation. The creation and issuance of any such rights shall be subject to the prior approval of the Commission. Subject thereto, the times at which and the terms upon which such rights are to be issued will be determined by the Board of Directors and set forth in the contracts or instruments that evidence such rights. The authority of the Board of Directors with respect to such rights shall include, but not be limited to, determination of the following:

- (a) the initial purchase price per share or other unit of the stock or other securities or property to be purchased upon exercise of such rights;
- (b) provisions relating to the times at which and the circumstances under which such rights may be exercised or sold or otherwise transferred, either together with or separately from, any other stock or other securities of the Corporation;
- (c) provisions which adjust the number or exercise price of such rights or amount or nature of the stock or other securities or property receivable upon exercise of such rights in the event of a combination, split or recapitalization of any stock of the Corporation, a change in ownership of the Corporation's stock or other

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 62 of 136

securities or a reorganization, merger, consolidation, sale of assets or other occurrence relating to the Corporation or any stock of the Corporation, and provisions restricting the ability of the Corporation to enter into any such transaction absent an assumption by the other party or parties thereto of the obligations of the Corporation under such rights;

- (d) provisions which deny the holder of a specified percentage of the outstanding stock or other securities of the Corporation the right to exercise such rights and/or cause the rights held by such holder to become void;
- (e) provisions which permit the Corporation to redeem or exchange such rights, which redemption or exchange may be within the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, if the Board of Directors reserves such right to itself; and
 - (f) the appointment of a rights agent with respect to such rights.

SEVENTH: (a) In furtherance, and not in limitation, of the powers conferred by law, the Board of Directors is expressly authorized and empowered:

- (i) to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation; provided, however, that any provision of the Bylaws adopted by the Board of Directors under the powers hereby conferred may be amended or repealed by the Board of Directors or by the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the voting power with respect thereto of the then outstanding shares of Common Stock; and
- (ii) from time to time to determine whether and to what extent, and at what times and places, and under what conditions and regulations, the accounts and books of the Corporation, or any of them, shall be open to inspection of stockholders; and, except as so determined, or as expressly provided in this Certificate of Incorporation or in any Preferred Stock Designation, no stockholder shall have any right to inspect any account, book or document of the Corporation other than such rights as may be conferred by law.
- (b) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Certificate of Incorporation to the contrary, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the voting power of the then outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be required to amend, repeal or adopt any provision inconsistent with (i) subdivision III of Article FOURTH, (ii) Article SIXTH, (iii) this Article SEVENTH or (iv) Section 2.2, 2.4, 2.5, 2.7 or 2.10 of Article II, Section 3.2, 3.3 or 3.5 of Article III or Article X of the Bylaws of the Corporation.

EIGHTH: (a) Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock or any other series or class of stock to elect additional directors under specified circumstances or to consent to specific actions taken by the Corporation, any action required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders of the Corporation must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting of stockholders of the Corporation and may not be effected by any consent in writing in lieu of a meeting of such stockholders.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 63 of 136

(b) Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock or any other series or class of stock to elect additional directors under specified circumstances, a special meeting of the holders of stock of the Corporation entitled to vote on any business to be considered at any such meeting may be called by the Chairman of the Board of the Corporation, or as otherwise set forth in the Bylaws of the Corporation, and shall be called by the Secretary of the Corporation at the request of the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the total number of directors which the Corporation would at the time have if there were no vacancies (the "Whole Board").

NINTH: (a) Unless and except to the extent that the Bylaws of the Corporation shall so require, the election of directors of the Corporation need not be by written ballot.

- (b) Advance notice of stockholder nominations for the election of directors shall be given in the manner provided in the Bylaws of the Corporation.
- (c) Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock or any other series or class of stock to elect additional directors under specified circumstances, vacancies resulting from death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office or other cause, and newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors, may be filled only by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors, though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors, from such candidates as are selected in accordance with the Bylaws of the Corporation, and directors so chosen shall hold office for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders at which the term of office of the class to which such director has been elected expires and until such director's successor shall have been duly elected and qualified. No decrease in the number of authorized directors constituting the Whole Board shall shorten the term of any incumbent director.

TENTH: A director of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for liability (i) for any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the Corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (iii) under Section 174 of the GCL or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. No amendment or repeal of this Article TENTH shall adversely affect any right or protection of a director of the Corporation existing hereunder in respect of any act or omission occurring prior to such amendment or repeal.

ELEVENTH: Except as may be expressly provided in this Certificate of Incorporation, the Corporation reserves the right at any time and from time to time to amend, alter, change or repeal any provision contained in this Certificate of Incorporation or a Preferred Stock Designation, and any other provisions authorized by the laws of the State of Delaware at the time in force may be added or inserted, in the manner now or hereafter prescribed herein or by law, and all powers, preferences and rights of whatsoever nature conferred upon stockholders, directors or any other persons whomsoever by and pursuant to this Certificate of Incorporation or a Preferred Stock Designation, as the same may be amended, are granted subject to the right reserved in this Article ELEVENTH, provided,

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 64 of 136

however, that no Preferred Stock Designation shall be amended after the issuance of any shares of the series of Preferred Stock created thereby, except in accordance with the terms of such Preferred Stock Designation and the requirements of law.

TWELFTH: In discharging his or her responsibilities as a member of the Board of Directors, each director shall take into consideration the effect that the Corporation's actions would have on the ability of ISE, LLC to carry out its responsibilities under the Exchange Act and on the ability of ISE, LLC and the Corporation: to engage in conduct that fosters and does not interfere with ISE, LLC's and the Corporation's ability to prevent fraudulent and manipulative acts and practices; to promote just and equitable principles of trade; to foster cooperation and coordination with persons engaged in regulating, clearing, settling, processing information with respect to, and facilitating transactions in securities; to remove impediments to and perfect the mechanisms of a free and open market and a national market system; and, in general, to protect investors and the public interest. In discharging his or her responsibilities as a member of the Board of Directors or as an officer or employee of the Corporation, each such director, officer or employee shall comply with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder and shall cooperate with ISE, LLC and the Commission pursuant to their respective regulatory authority.

THIRTEENTH: All confidential information pertaining to the self-regulatory function of ISE, LLC (including but not limited to disciplinary matters, trading data trading practices and audit information) contained in the books and records of ISE, LLC that shall come into the possession of the Corporation shall: (x) not be made available to any Person (other than as provided in the next sentence) other than to those officers, directors, employees and agents of the Corporation that have a reasonable need to know the contents thereof; (y) be retained in confidence by the Corporation and the officers, directors, employees and agents of the Corporation; and (z) not be used for any commercial purposes. Nothing in this Certificate of Incorporation shall be interpreted as to limit or impede the rights of the Commission to access and examine such confidential information pursuant to the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, or to limit or impede the ability of any officers, directors, employees or agents of the Corporation to disclose such confidential information to the Commission.

FOURTEENTH: For so long as the Corporation shall control, directly or indirectly, ISE, LLC, the books, records, premises, officers, directors and employees of the Corporation shall be deemed to be the books, records, premises, officers, directors and employees of ISE, LLC for purposes of and subject to oversight pursuant to the Exchange Act, but only to the extent that such books, records, premises, officers, directors and employees of the Corporation relate to the exchange business of ISE, LLC. The books and records related to the exchange business of ISE, LLC shall be subject at all times to inspection and copying by the Commission and ISE, LLC.

FIFTEENTH: The Corporation shall comply with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder and shall cooperate with ISE, LLC and the Commission pursuant to their respective regulatory authority, and shall take reasonable steps necessary to cause its agents to cooperate with ISE, LLC and the Commission pursuant to

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 65 of 136

their respective regulatory authority with respect to such agents' activities related to ISE, LLC.

SIXTEENTH: Notwithstanding any other provision of this Certificate of Incorporation, for so long as the Corporation shall control, directly or indirectly, ISE, LLC, before any amendment to or repeal of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation shall be effective, the same shall be submitted to the Board of Directors of ISE, LLC and if said Board shall determine that the same must be filed with, or filed with and approved by, the Commission before the same may be effective, under Section 19 of the Exchange Act and the rules promulgated thereunder, then the same shall not be effective until filed with, or filed with and approved by, the Commission, as the case may be.

SEVENTEENTH: The name and mailing address of the incorporator is Miriam Foley, c/o Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy LLP, One Chase Manhattan Plaza, New York, New York 10005.

WITNESS my signature this 16th day of November, 2004.

/s/ Miriam Foley Sole Incorporator

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006 Page 66 of 136

All text below is new

BYLAWS

OF

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE HOLDINGS, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
ARTICLE I Office and Records; Jurisdiction	1
Section 1.1 Delaware Office	
Section 1.2 Other Offices	
Section 1.3 Books and Records	
Section 1.4 Consent to Jurisdiction	
Section 1.5 Officers and Directors	
Section 1.6 Further Compliance	
ARTICLE II Stockholders	2
Section 2.1 Annual Meeting	
Section 2.2 Special Meetings	
Section 2.3 Notice of Meetings.	
Section 2.4 Quorum	
Section 2.5 Voting	
Section 2.6 Proxies	
Section 2.7 Notice of Stockholder Business and Nominations	
Section 2.8 Inspectors of Elections; Opening and Closing the Polls	
Section 2.9 List of Stockholders	
Section 2.10 No Stockholder Action by Written Consent.	
ARTICLE III Directors	7
Section 3.1 General Powers	
Section 3.2 Number, Tenure and Qualifications	
Section 3.3 Vacancies and Newly Created Directorships	8
Section 3.4 Resignation	
Section 3.5 Removal	
Section 3.6 Meetings	8
Section 3.7 Quorum and Voting	
Section 3.8 Written Consent of Directors in Lieu of a Meeting	9
Section 3.9 Compensation	9
Section 3.10 Committees of the Board of Directors	
Section 3.11 Chairman of the Board	10
Section 3.12 Vice Chairman of the Board	10
ARTICLE IV Officers	11
Section 4.1 Officers	11
Section 4.2 Election and Term of Office	11
Section 4.3 Resignation and Removal	
Section 4.4 Compensation and Bond	11
Section 4.5 President and Chief Executive Officer	11
Section 4.6 Vice Presidents	12
Section 4.7 Treasurer	12
Section 4.8 Secretary	12

SR-ISE-2006-04 Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

1 450 00 01 130	Page	68	of	136	
-----------------	------	----	----	-----	--

Section 4.9 Assistant Treasurers	12
Section 4.10 Assistant Secretaries	13
Section 4.11 Delegation of Duties	
ARTICLE V Indemnification and Insurance	13
Section 5.1 Right to Indemnification	13
Section 5.2 Right to Advancement of Expenses	13
Section 5.3 Right of Indemnitee to Bring Suit	14
Section 5.4 Non-Exclusivity of Rights	
Section 5.5 Insurance	
Section 5.6 Indemnification of Employees and Agents of the Corporation	14
Section 5.7 Contract Rights	
ARTICLE VI Common Stock	15
Section 6.1 Certificates	15
Section 6.2 Transfers of Stock	15
Section 6.3 Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates	15
Section 6.4 Stockholder Record Date	16
ARTICLE VII Seal	16
Section 7.1 Seal.	16
ARTICLE VIII Waiver of Notice	17
Section 8.1 Waiver of Notice	17
ARTICLE IX Checks, Notes, Drafts, Etc.	
Section 9.1 Checks, Notes, Drafts, Etc.	17
ARTICLE X Amendments	
Section 10.1 Amendments	17

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006 Page 69 of 136

BYLAWS

OF

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE HOLDINGS, INC.

ARTICLE I

Office and Records; Jurisdiction

Section 1.1 Delaware Office. The principal office of the Corporation in the State of Delaware shall be located in the City of Dover, County of Kent, and the name and address of its registered agent is National Registered Agents, Inc., 9 East Loockerman Street, Suite 1B, Delaware 19901.

Section 1.2 Other Offices. The Corporation may have such other offices, either within or without the State of Delaware, as the Board of Directors may designate or as the business of the Corporation may from time to time require.

Section 1.3 Books and Records. The books and records of the Corporation may be kept at the Corporation's principal executive offices in New York, New York or at such other locations within or without the State of Delaware as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Directors, provided the books and records shall always be kept within the United States.

Section 1.4 Consent to Jurisdiction. The Corporation and its officers, directors, employees and agents, by virtue of their acceptance of such position, shall be deemed to irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of the United States federal courts, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission"), and International Securities Exchange, LLC ("ISE, LLC"), for the purposes of any suit, action or proceeding pursuant to the United States federal securities laws, and the rules or regulations thereunder, arising out of, or relating to, the activities of ISE, LLC, and by virtue of their acceptance of any such position, shall be deemed to waive, and agree not to assert by way of motion, as a defense or otherwise in any such suit, action or proceeding, any claims that it or they are not personally subject to the jurisdiction of the United States federal courts, the Commission or ISE, LLC, that the suit, action or proceeding is an inconvenient forum or that the venue of the suit, action or proceeding is improper, or that the subject matter thereof may not be enforced in or by such courts or agency. The Corporation and its officers, directors, employees and agents also agree that they will maintain an agent, in the United States, for the service of process of a claim arising out of, or relating to, the activities of ISE, LLC.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 70 of 136

Section 1.5 Officers and Directors. For so long as the Corporation shall control, directly or indirectly, ISE, LLC, each officer, director and employee of the Corporation shall give due regard to the preservation of the independence of the self-regulatory function of ISE, LLC and to ISE, LLC's obligations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and the rules thereunder including, without limitation, Section 6(b) of the Exchange Act and shall not take any actions which he or she knows or reasonably should have known would interfere with the effectuation of any decisions by the Board of Directors of ISE, LLC relating to ISE, LLC's regulatory functions (including disciplinary matters) or which would adversely affect the ability of ISE, LLC to carry out ISE, LLC's responsibilities under the Exchange Act.

Section 1.6 Further Compliance. The Corporation shall take reasonable steps necessary to cause its officers, directors and employees prior to accepting a position as an officer, director or employee, as applicable, of the Corporation to consent in writing to the applicability to them of Article TWELFTH, Article THIRTEENTH and Article FOURTEENTH of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation (the "Certificate of Incorporation") and Sections 1.4 and 1.5 hereof, as applicable, with respect to their activities related to ISE, LLC.

ARTICLE II

Stockholders

Section 2.1 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of stockholders of the Corporation shall be held on such date and at such time as may be designated by the Board of Directors at the principal executive offices of the Corporation, or at such other place within or without the State of Delaware as may be fixed by the Board of Directors.

Section 2.2 Special Meetings. Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of preferred stock, par value \$.01 per share, of the Corporation (the "Preferred Stock"), or any other series or class of stock as set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation to elect additional directors under specified circumstances, a special meeting of the holders of stock of the Corporation entitled to vote on any business to be considered at any such meeting may be called only by the Chairman of the Board of the Corporation or a majority of the Board of Directors for any purpose or purposes, and shall be called by the Secretary of the Corporation at the request of the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the total number of directors which the Corporation would at the time have if there were no vacancies (the "Whole Board"). The Board of Directors may designate the place of meeting for any special meeting of the stockholders, and if no such designation is made, the place of meeting shall be the principal executive offices of the Corporation.

Section 2.3 Notice of Meetings. Whenever stockholders are required or permitted to take any action at a meeting, unless notice is waived as provided in Section 8.1 of these Bylaws, a written notice of the meeting shall be given which shall state the place, date and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called. Unless otherwise provided by law, and except as to any

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 71 of 136

stockholder duly waiving notice, the written notice of any meeting shall be given personally or by mail, not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting to each stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting. If mailed, notice shall be deemed given when deposited in the mail, postage prepaid, directed to the stockholder at his or her address as it appears on the records of the Corporation. Any previously scheduled meeting of the stockholders may be postponed by resolution of the Board of Directors upon public notice given by press release prior to the time previously scheduled for such meeting of stockholders.

When a meeting is adjourned to another time or place, notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting if the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting the Corporation may transact any business which might have been transacted at the original meeting. If, however, the adjournment is for more than thirty (30) days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at the meeting.

Section 2.4 Quorum. Except as otherwise provided by law or by the Certificate of Incorporation or by these Bylaws, at any meeting of stockholders the holders of a majority of the voting power of the outstanding shares of the Corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (the "Voting Stock"), either present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business at such meeting, except that when specified business is to be voted on by a class or series voting as a class, the holders of a majority of the voting power of such class or series entitled to vote shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of such business. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the chairman of the meeting or a majority of the voting power of the shares of Voting Stock so present or represented may adjourn the meeting from time to time, whether or not there is such a quorum (or in the case of specified business to be voted on as a class or series, the chairman or a majority of the shares of such class or series entitled to vote which are so present or represented may adjourn the meeting with respect to such specified business). No notice of the time and place of adjourned meetings need be given except as provided in the last paragraph of Section 2.3 of these Bylaws. The stockholders present at a duly organized meeting may continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of a sufficient number of stockholders to result in less than a quorum.

Section 2.5 Voting. Except as otherwise set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation with respect to the right of any holder of any series of Preferred Stock or any other series or class of stock to elect additional directors under specified circumstances, whenever directors are to be elected at a meeting, they shall be elected by a plurality of the votes cast at the meeting by the holders of stock entitled to vote. Whenever any corporate action, other than the election of directors, is to be taken by vote of stockholders at a meeting, such corporate action shall, except as otherwise required by law or by the Certificate of Incorporation or by these Bylaws, be authorized by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote with respect to such corporate action. Except as otherwise provided by law, or by the Certificate of Incorporation, each holder of record of stock of the Corporation entitled to vote on any matter at any meeting of stockholders shall be entitled to one vote for each share of

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 72 of 136

such stock standing in the name of such holder on the stock ledger of the Corporation on the record date for the determination of the stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting.

Upon the demand of any stockholder entitled to vote, the vote for directors or the vote on any other matter at a meeting shall be by written ballot, but otherwise the method of voting and the manner in which votes are counted shall be discretionary with the presiding officer at the meeting.

Section 2.6 Proxies. Each stockholder entitled to vote at a meeting of stockholders may authorize another person or persons to act for him or her by proxy, but no such proxy shall be voted or acted upon after eleven (11) months from its date, unless the proxy provides for a longer period. Every proxy shall be signed by the stockholder or by his or her duly authorized attorney. Such proxy must be filed with the Secretary of the Corporation or his or her representative at or before the time of the meeting.

Section 2.7 Notice of Stockholder Business and Nominations. (a) Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

- (i) Nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors and the proposal of business to be considered by the stockholders may be made at an annual meeting of stockholders (1) by or at the direction of the Chairman of the Board or the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the Whole Board (or a committee as designated by the Board of Directors) and (2) by any stockholder of the Corporation who is entitled to vote at the meeting with respect to the election of directors or the business to be proposed by such stockholder, as the case may be, who complies with the notice procedures set forth in clauses (ii) and (iii) of paragraph (a) of this Section 2.7 and who is a stockholder of record at the time such notice is delivered to the Secretary of the Corporation as provided below.
- For nominations or other business to be properly brought before an (ii) annual meeting by a stockholder pursuant to clause (2) of paragraph (a)(i) of this Section 2.7, the stockholder must have given timely notice thereof in writing to the Secretary of the Corporation and such business must be a proper subject for stockholder action under the Delaware General Corporation Law (the "GCL"). To be timely, a stockholder's notice shall be delivered to the Secretary of the Corporation at the principal executive offices of the Corporation not less than sixty (60) days nor more than ninety (90) days prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year's annual meeting; provided, however, that in the event that the date of the annual meeting is advanced by more than thirty (30) days, or delayed by more than sixty (60) days, from such anniversary date, notice by the stockholder to be timely must be so delivered not earlier than the ninetieth (90th) day prior to such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the sixtieth (60th) day prior to such annual meeting or the tenth (10th) day following the day on which public announcement of the date of such meeting is first made. Such stockholder's notice shall set forth (1) as to each person whom the stockholder proposes to nominate for election or reelection as a director all information relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors, or is otherwise required, in each case pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act, including such person's written consent to being named in the

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 73 of 136

proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected and a statement that such nominee complies with the requirements set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation; (2) as to any other business that the stockholder proposes to bring before the meeting, a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the meeting, the reasons for conducting such business at the meeting and any material interest in such business of such stockholder and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the proposal is made; and (3) as to the stockholder giving the notice and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the nomination or proposal is made (i) the name and address of such stockholder, as they appear on the Corporation's books, and of such beneficial owner and (ii) the class and number of shares of the Corporation which are owned beneficially and of record by such stockholder and such beneficial owner.

- (iii) Notwithstanding anything in the second sentence of paragraph (a)(ii) of this Section 2.7 to the contrary, in the event that the number of directors to be elected to the Board of Directors is increased and there is no public announcement naming all of the nominees for director or specifying the size of the increased Board of Directors made by the Corporation at least eighty (80) days prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year's annual meeting, a stockholder's notice required by paragraph (a)(ii) of this Section 2.7 shall also be considered timely, but only with respect to nominees for any new positions created by such increase, if it shall be delivered to the Secretary of the Corporation at the principal executive offices of the Corporation not later than the close of business on the tenth (10th) day following the day on which such public announcement is first made by the Corporation.
- Special Meeting of Stockholders. Nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors may be made at a special meeting of stockholders called in accordance with Section 2.2, at which directors are to be elected (1) by or at the direction of the Chairman of the Board or the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the Whole Board (or a committee as designated by the Board of Directors) or (2) by any stockholder of the Corporation who is entitled to vote at the meeting with respect to the election of directors, who complies with the notice procedures set forth in this paragraph (b) and who is a stockholder of record at the time such notice is delivered to the Secretary of the Corporation as provided below. Nominations by stockholders of persons for election to the Board of Directors may be made at such a special meeting of stockholders if the stockholder's notice as required by paragraph (a)(ii) of this Section 2.7 shall be delivered to the Secretary of the Corporation at the principal executive offices of the Corporation not earlier than the ninetieth (90th) day prior to such special meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the sixtieth (60th) day prior to such special meeting or the tenth (10th) day following the day on which public announcement is first made of the date of the special meeting and of the nominees proposed by the Board of Directors to be elected at such meeting.
- (c) General. (i) Only persons who are nominated in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 2.7 shall be eligible to serve as directors and only such business shall be conducted at a meeting of stockholders as shall have been brought before the meeting in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 2.7.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 74 of 136

(ii) Except as otherwise provided by law, the Certificate of Incorporation or this Section 2.7, the chairman of the meeting shall have the power and duty to determine whether a nomination or any business proposed to be brought before the meeting was made in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 2.7 and, if any proposed nomination or business is not in compliance with this Section 2.7, to declare that such defective nomination or proposal shall be disregarded.

- (iii) For purposes of this Section 2.7, "public announcement" shall mean disclosure in a press release reported by the Dow Jones News Service, Associated Press or comparable national news service or in a document publicly filed by the Corporation with the Commission pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act.
- (iv) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 2.7, a stockholder shall also comply with all applicable requirements of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder with respect to the matters set forth in this Section 2.7. Nothing in this Section 2.7 shall be deemed to affect any rights (1) of stockholders to request inclusion of proposals in the Corporation's proxy materials with respect to a meeting of stockholders pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under Exchange Act or (2) of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock or any other series or class of stock as set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation to elect directors under specified circumstances or to exercise voting rights in connection with specific actions taken by the Corporation.

Section 2.8 Inspectors of Elections; Opening and Closing the Polls. (a) The Board of Directors by resolution shall appoint one or more inspectors, which inspector or inspectors may include individuals who serve the Corporation in other capacities, including, without limitation, as officers, employees, agents or representatives of the Corporation, to act at the meeting and make a written report thereof. One or more persons may be designated as alternate inspectors to replace any inspector who fails to act. If no inspector or alternate has been appointed to act, or if all inspectors or alternates who have been appointed are unable to act, at a meeting of stockholders, the chairman of the meeting shall appoint one or more inspectors to act at the meeting. Each inspector, before discharging his or her duties, shall take and sign an oath faithfully to execute the duties of inspector to the best of his or her ability. The inspectors shall have the duties prescribed by the GCL.

(b) The chairman of the meeting shall fix and announce at the meeting the time of the opening and the closing of the polls for each matter upon which the stockholders will vote at a meeting.

Section 2.9 List of Stockholders. The officer who has charge of the stock ledger of the Corporation shall prepare and make, at least ten (10) days before every meeting of stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, and showing the address of each stockholder and the number of shares registered in the name of each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the examination of any stockholder, for any purpose germane to the meeting, for a period of at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting, either on a reasonably accessible electronic network, provided that information required to gain access to such list is provided with the notice of the meeting, or during ordinary business hours, at the principal place of business of the Corporation. In the

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 75 of 136

event that the Corporation determines to make the list available on an electronic network, the Corporation may take reasonable steps to ensure that such information is available only to stockholders of the Corporation. If the meeting is to be held at a place, then the list shall also be produced and kept at the time and place of the meeting during the whole time thereof, and may be inspected by any stockholder who is present. If the meeting is to be held solely by means of remote communication, then the list shall also be open to the examination of any stockholder during the whole time of the meeting on a reasonably accessible electronic network, and the information required to access such list shall be provided with the notice of the meeting. Nothing in this Section shall require the Corporation to include electronic mail addresses or other electronic contact information on such list.

The stock ledger shall be the only evidence as to who are the stockholders entitled to examine the stock ledger, the list required by this Section or the books of the Corporation, or to vote in person or by proxy at any meeting of stockholders.

Section 2.10 No Stockholder Action by Written Consent. Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock or any other series or class of stock as set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation to elect additional directors under specified circumstances or to consent to specific actions taken by the Corporation, any action required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders of the Corporation must be taken at an annual or special meeting of the stockholders and may not be taken by any consent in writing by such stockholders.

ARTICLE III

Directors

Section 3.1 General Powers. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of its Board of Directors. In addition to the powers and authorities by these Bylaws expressly conferred upon it, the Board of Directors may exercise all such powers of the Corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by law or by the Certificate of Incorporation or by these Bylaws required to be exercised or done by the stockholders.

Section 3.2 Number, Tenure and Qualifications. Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock or any other series or class of stock as set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation to elect directors under specified circumstances, the number of directors shall be fixed from time to time exclusively pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the Whole Board, but shall consist of not more than fifteen (15) nor less than two (2) directors, and one (1) of such directors shall be such person who is currently holding the office of President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. The directors, other than the President and Chief Executive Officer or those who may be elected by the holders of any series of Preferred Stock or any other series or class of stock as set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation, shall be divided into two (2) classes, and designated as Class I and Class II. Class I directors shall be initially elected for a term expiring at the 2005 annual meeting of stockholders and Class II directors shall be initially elected for a term expiring at the 2006 annual meeting of stockholders. Members of each class shall hold office until their

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 76 of 136

successors shall have been duly elected and qualified. At each succeeding annual meeting of stockholders of the Corporation, the successors of the class of directors whose term expires at that meeting shall be elected to hold office for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders held in the second year following the year of their election, and until their successors are elected and qualified. The President and Chief Executive Officer shall hold office for a period of one (1) year or such earlier time as such person no longer serves as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation.

Section 3.3 Vacancies and Newly Created Directorship. Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock or any other series or class of stock as set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation to elect additional directors under specified circumstances, in the event that a director position becomes available, whether through vacancies resulting from death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office or other cause, or newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors, such positions may be filled only by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors, though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors, and directors so chosen shall hold office for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders at which the term of office of the class to which such director has been elected expires and until such director's successor shall have been duly elected and qualified. No decrease in the number of authorized directors constituting the Whole Board shall shorten the term of any incumbent director.

Section 3.4 Resignation. Any director may resign at any time upon written notice to the Corporation. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein or, if the time be not specified, upon receipt thereof, and the acceptance of such resignation, unless required by the terms thereof, shall not be necessary to make such resignation effective.

Section 3.5 Removal. Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock or any other series or class of stock as set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation to elect additional directors under specified circumstances, any director may be removed from office in the manner set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation.

Section 3.6 Meetings. Meetings of the Board of Directors, regular or special, may be held at any place within or without the State of Delaware. Members of the Board of Directors, or of any committee designated by the Board of Directors, may participate in a meeting of the Board of Directors or such committee by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and participation in a meeting by such means shall constitute presence in person at such meeting. An annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held as soon as practicable following each annual meeting of stockholders. The Board of Directors may fix times and places for such annual meeting and additional regular meetings of the Board of Directors and no further notice of such meetings need be given. A special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held whenever called by the Chairman of the Board or by a majority of the Whole Board, at such time and place as shall be specified in the notice or waiver thereof. The person or persons authorized to call a special meeting of the Board of Directors may fix the place and time of the meetings. Notice of any special meeting

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 77 of 136

shall be given to each director at his or her business or residence in writing, by electronic mail or by telegram or by telephone communication. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed adequately delivered when deposited in the United States mails so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid, at least five (5) days before such meeting. If by electronic mail, such notice shall be deemed adequately delivered when the electronic mail is sent at least twenty-four hours before the meeting. If by telegram, such notice shall be deemed adequately delivered when the telegram is delivered to the telegraph company at least twenty-four hours before such meeting. If by facsimile transmission, such notice shall be transmitted at least twenty-four hours before such meeting. If by telephone, the notice shall be given at least twelve hours prior to the time set for the meeting. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors need be specified in the notice of such meeting, except for amendments to these Bylaws as provided under Section 10.1 of these Bylaws.

Section 3.7 Quorum and Voting. A whole number of directors equal to at least a majority of the Whole Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors, but if there be less than a quorum, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time, and no further notice thereof need be given other than announcement at the meeting which shall be so adjourned. Except as otherwise provided by law, by the Certificate of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, the vote of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors.

Section 3.8 Written Consent of Directors in Lieu of a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board of Directors or of such committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, and the writing or writings are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board of Directors or of such committee.

Section 3.9 Compensation. Directors may receive compensation for services to the Corporation in their capacities as directors or otherwise in such manner and in such amounts as may be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Section 3.10 Committees of the Board of Directors. (a) The Corporation shall have an Executive Committee, Finance & Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Corporate Governance Committee, as described in the subparagraphs below. The Board of Directors may from time to time, by resolution passed by a majority of the Whole Board, designate one or more additional committees ("Board Committees"), each committee to consist of one or more directors of the Corporation. The Board of Directors may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any Board Committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee. The resolution of the Board of Directors may, in addition or alternatively, provide that in the absence or disqualification of a member of a Board Committee, the member or members thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not he, she or they constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the Board of Directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified member. Any such Board Committee, to the extent

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 78 of 136

provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors or in these Bylaws, shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation, and may authorize the seal of the Corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it, except as otherwise provided by law. Unless the resolution of the Board of Directors expressly so provides, no such Board Committee shall have the power or authority to declare a dividend or to authorize the issuance of stock. Any such Board Committee may adopt rules governing the method of calling and time and place of holding its meetings. Unless otherwise set forth herein or as provided by the Board of Directors, a majority of any such Board Committee (or the member thereof, if only one) shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the vote of a majority of the members of such Board Committee present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of such Board Committee. Each such Board Committee shall keep a record of its acts and proceedings and shall report thereon to the Board of Directors whenever requested so to do. Any or all members of any such Board Committee may be removed, with or without cause, by resolution of the Board of Directors, passed by a majority of the Whole Board.

- (b) Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of such number of directors as the Board shall from time to time determine, but not less than four (4), as follows: the Chairman of the Board, the Vice Chairman of the Board, the President and Chief Executive Officer, and such other directors as determined by the Board. The Chairman of the Executive Committee shall be the President and Chief Executive Officer. The Executive Committee shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board of Directors except that the Executive Committee shall not have the powers of the Board of Directors with respect to approving any merger, consolidation, sale of substantially all of the assets or dissolution of the Corporation. The Board shall appoint the members of the Executive Committee in accordance with this Section 3.10(b).
- (c) Corporate Governance Committee. The Corporate Governance Committee shall consist of not less than three (3), and no more than eight (8), directors each of whom shall meet the requirements established in the Corporate Governance Committee charter. The Board of Directors shall adopt a charter setting forth the responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee.
- (d) Finance & Audit Committee. The Finance & Audit Committee shall consist of not less than three (3), and no more than five (5), directors each of whom shall meet the requirements established in the Finance & Audit Committee charter. The Board of Directors shall adopt a charter setting forth the responsibilities of the Finance & Audit Committee
- (e) Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee shall consist of not less than three (3), and no more than five (5), directors each of whom shall meet the requirements established in the Compensation Committee charter. The Board of Directors shall adopt a charter setting forth the responsibilities of the Compensation Committee.
- Section 3.11 Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board shall be elected, by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the directors then in office. The Chairman of the Board shall serve as such for a term of one (1) year. The Chairman of the

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 79 of 136

Board shall have the authority provided in these Bylaws, but shall not be an officer of the Corporation. The Chairman of the Board shall preside at all meetings of stockholders and of the Board of Directors.

Section 3.12 Vice Chairman of the Board. The Vice Chairman of the Board shall be elected from among the directors by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the directors then in office. The Vice Chairman of the Board shall serve as such for a term of one (1) year. In the case of the absence or inability of the Chairman of the Board to act, or a vacancy in the office of the Chairman of the Board, the Vice Chairman of the Board shall exercise the powers and discharge the duties of the Chairman of the Board, unless determined otherwise by the Board of Directors. The Vice Chairman of the Board shall have the authority provided in these Bylaws, but shall not be an officer of the Corporation.

ARTICLE IV

Officers

Secretary and a Treasurer, and one or more Vice Presidents, one or more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistant Treasurers. The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. All officers elected by the Board of Directors shall each have such powers and duties as generally pertain to their respective offices, subject to the specific provisions of this Article IV, together with such other powers and duties as from time to time may be conferred by the Board of Directors or any committee thereof. Any number of such offices may be held by the same person, but no officer shall execute, acknowledge or verify any instrument in more than one capacity. The Board of Directors may elect, and may delegate power to elect, such other officers, agents and employees as it may deem necessary or proper, who shall hold their offices or positions for such terms, have such authority and perform such duties as may from time to time be determined by or pursuant to authorization of the Board of Directors.

Section 4.2 Election and Term of Office. The officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors held after each annual meeting of the stockholders. If the election of officers shall not be accomplished at such meeting, such election shall be accomplished as soon thereafter as convenient. Subject to Section 4.3 of these Bylaws, each officer shall hold office until his or her successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified or until his or her death, removal or resignation.

Section 4.3 Resignation and Removal. Any officer may resign at any time upon written notice to the Corporation. Any elected officer may be removed by a majority of the members of the Whole Board, with or without cause, at any time. The Board of Directors may delegate such power of removal as to officers, agents and employees not elected by the Board of Directors. Such removal shall be without prejudice to a person's contract rights, if any, but the appointment of any person as an officer, agent or employee of the Corporation shall not itself create contract rights.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 80 of 136

Section 4.4 Compensation and Bond. The compensation of the officers of the Corporation shall be fixed by the Board of Directors, but this power may be delegated to any officer in respect of other officers under his or her control. The Corporation may secure the fidelity of any or all of its officers, agents or employees by bond or otherwise.

Section 4.5 President and Chief Executive Officer.

- (a) The President and Chief Executive Officer shall be appointed by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 4.1 and shall be nominated for a directorship by virtue of his or her office.
- (b) The President and Chief Executive Officer shall manage the affairs of the Corporation and shall be the representative of the Corporation in all public matters.
- (c) The President and Chief Executive Officer shall not engage in any other occupation during his or her incumbency except with the approval of the Board of Directors.
- (d) The President and Chief Executive Officer may be removed by a vote of two-thirds of the directors then in office, exclusive of the President and Chief Executive Officer, in the event that he or she refuses, fails, neglects or is unable to discharge his or her duties or for any cause affecting the best interests of the Corporation.
- (e) In the case of temporary absence or inability to act, the President and Chief Executive Officer may designate any other officer to assume all the functions and discharge all the duties of the President and Chief Executive Officer. Upon his or her failure to do so, or if the office of President and Chief Executive Officer is vacant, any officer so designated by the Board of Directors shall perform the functions and duties of the President and Chief Executive Officer.

Section 4.6 Vice Presidents. Each Vice President shall have such powers and perform such duties as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.

Section 4.7 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have charge of all funds and securities of the Corporation, shall endorse the same for deposit or collection when necessary and deposit the same to the credit of the Corporation in such banks or depositaries as the Board of Directors may authorize. He or she may endorse all commercial documents requiring endorsements for or on behalf of the Corporation and may sign all receipts and vouchers for payments made to the Corporation and may disburse funds as directed by the Board of Directors. He or she shall have all such further powers and duties as generally are incident to the position of Treasurer or as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors.

Section 4.8 Secretary. The Secretary shall record all the proceedings of the meetings of the stockholders and directors in a book to be kept for that purpose and shall also record therein all action taken by written consent of directors in lieu of a meeting. He or she shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices of the Corporation. He or she shall have custody of the seal of the Corporation and shall attest the same by his or her signature whenever required. He or she shall have charge of the stock ledger and such other books and

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 81 of 136

papers as the Board of Directors may direct, but he or she may delegate responsibility for maintaining the stock ledger to any transfer agent appointed by the Board of Directors. He or she shall have all such further powers and duties as generally are incident to the position of Secretary or as may be assigned to him or her by the President and Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directors.

Section 4.9 Assistant Treasurers. In the absence or inability to act of the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer may perform all the duties and exercise all the powers of the Treasurer. An Assistant Treasurer shall also perform such other duties as the Treasurer or the Board of Directors may assign to him or her.

Section 4.10 Assistant Secretaries. In the absence or inability to act of the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary may perform all the duties and exercise all the powers of the Secretary. An Assistant Secretary shall also perform such other duties as the Secretary or the Board of Directors may assign to him or her.

Section 4.11 Delegation of Duties. In case of the absence of any officer of the Corporation, or for any other reason that the Board of Directors may deem sufficient, the Board of Directors may confer for the time being the powers or duties, or any of them, of such officer upon any other officer or upon any director.

ARTICLE V

Indemnification and Insurance

Section 5.1 Right to Indemnification. Each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise involved in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (hereinafter a "proceeding"), by reason of the fact that he or she or a person of whom he or she is the legal representative is or was a director or an officer of the Corporation or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of any other corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to any employee benefit plan (hereinafter an "indemnitee"), whether the basis of such proceeding is alleged action in an official capacity as a director, officer, employee or agent or in any other capacity while serving as a director, officer, employee or agent, shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Corporation to the fullest extent authorized by the GCL, as the same exists or may hereafter be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment, only to the extent that such amendment permits the Corporation to provide broader indemnification rights than said law permitted the Corporation to provide prior to such amendment), against all expense, liability and loss (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, excise taxes or penalties under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and amounts paid or to be paid in settlement) reasonably incurred by such indemnitee in connection therewith; provided, however, that except as provided in Section 5.3 with respect to proceedings seeking to enforce rights to indemnification, the Corporation shall indemnify any such indemnitee seeking indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 82 of 136

indemnitee only if such proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the Board of Directors

Section 5.2 Right to Advancement of Expenses. The right to indemnification conferred in Section 5.1 shall include the right to be paid by the Corporation the expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred in defending any such proceeding in advance of its final disposition (hereinafter an "advancement of expenses"); provided, however, that, if the GCL requires, an advancement of expenses incurred by an indemnitee in his or her capacity as a director or officer (and not in any other capacity in which service was or is rendered by such indemnitee, including, without limitation, service to an employee benefit plan) shall be made only upon delivery to the Corporation of an undertaking (hereinafter an "undertaking"), by or on behalf of such indemnitee, to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined by final judicial decision from which there is no further right to appeal (hereinafter a "final adjudication") that such indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified for such expenses under this Section 5.2 or otherwise.

Section 5.3 Right of Indemnitee to Bring Suit. If a claim under Section 5.1 or Section 5.2 is not paid in full by the Corporation within thirty (30) days after a written claim has been received by the Corporation, except in the case of a claim for an advancement of expenses, in which case the applicable period shall be twenty (20) days, the indemnitee may at any time thereafter bring suit against the Corporation to recover the unpaid amount of the claim. If successful in whole or in part in any such suit, or in a suit brought by the Corporation to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the indemnitee shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting or defending such suit. In (i) any suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right to indemnification hereunder (but not in a suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right of an advancement of expenses) it shall be a defense that, and (ii) in any suit brought by the Corporation to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the Corporation shall be entitled to recover such expenses upon a final adjudication that, the indemnitee has not met any applicable standard for indemnification set forth in the GCL. Neither the failure of the Corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or stockholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such action that indemnification of the indemnitee is proper in the circumstances because the indemnitee has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in the GCL, nor an actual determination by the Corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or stockholders) that the indemnitee has not met such applicable standard of conduct, shall create a presumption that the indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of conduct or, in the case of such a suit brought by the indemnitee, be a defense to such suit. In any suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right to indemnification or to an advancement of expenses hereunder, or brought by the Corporation to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the burden of proving that the indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified, or to such advancement of expenses, under this Article V or otherwise shall be on the Corporation.

Section 5.4 Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The right to indemnification and the advancement of expenses conferred in this Article V shall not be exclusive of any other right which any person may have or hereafter acquire under any statute, provision of the

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 83 of 136

Certificate of Incorporation, provision of these Bylaws, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise.

Section 5.5 Insurance. The Corporation may maintain insurance, at its expense, to protect itself and any director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any expense, liability or loss, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against such expense, liability or loss under the GCL.

Section 5.6 Indemnification of Employees and Agents of the Corporation. The Corporation may, to the extent authorized from time to time by the Board of Directors, grant rights to indemnification, and rights to the advancement of expenses, to any employee or agent of the Corporation to the fullest extent of the provisions of this Article V with respect to the indemnification and advancement of expenses of directors and officers of the Corporation.

Section 5.7 Contract Rights. The rights to indemnification and to the advancement of expenses conferred in Section 5.1 and Section 5.2 shall be contract rights and such rights shall continue as to an indemnitee who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the indemnitee's heirs, executors and administrators.

ARTICLE VI

Common Stock

Section 6.1 Certificates. Certificates for stock of the Corporation shall be in such form as shall be approved by the Board of Directors and shall be signed in the name of the Corporation by the Chairman of the Board, the President and Chief Executive Officer, the President or a Vice President, and by the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer, or the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary. Such certificates may be sealed with the seal of the Corporation or a facsimile thereof. Any of or all the signatures on a certificate may be a facsimile. In case any officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be such officer, transfer agent or registrar before such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the Corporation with the same effect as if he or she were such officer, transfer agent or registrar at the date of issue. The Board of Directors may provide by resolution or resolutions that all or some of any class or series of stock of the Corporation shall be uncertificated shares. Within a reasonable time following the issuance or transfer of any uncertificated shares, the Corporation shall send to the registered owner thereof any written notice prescribed by the GCL.

Section 6.2 Transfers of Stock. Transfers of stock shall be made only upon the books of the Corporation by the holder, in person or by a duly authorized attorney, and on the surrender of the certificate or certificates for the same number of shares, with an assignment and power of transfer endorsed thereon or attached thereto, duly executed, with such proof of the authenticity of the signature as the Corporation or its agents may reasonably require. The Board of Directors shall have the power to make all such rules and

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 84 of 136

regulations, not inconsistent with the Certificate of Incorporation and these Bylaws and the GCL, as the Board of Directors may deem appropriate concerning the issue, transfer and registration of certificates for stock of the Corporation. The Board of Directors may appoint one or more transfer agents or registrars of transfers, or both, and may require all stock certificates to bear the signature of either or both.

Section 6.3 Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates. The Corporation may issue a new stock certificate in the place of any certificate theretofore issued by it, alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed, and the Corporation may require the owner of the lost, stolen or destroyed certificate or his or her legal representative to give the Corporation a bond sufficient to indemnify it against any claim that may be made against it on account of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of any such certificate or the issuance of any such new certificate. The Board of Directors may require such owner to satisfy other reasonable requirements as it deems appropriate under the circumstances.

Section 6.4 Stockholder Record Date. In order that the Corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any adjournment thereof, or entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights, or entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion or exchange of stock, or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix a record date, which record date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors, and which shall not be more than sixty (60) nor less than ten (10) days before the date of such meeting, nor more than sixty (60) days prior to any other action. If no record date is fixed by the Board of Directors, (I) the record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on the day next preceding the date on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held, and (2) the record date for determining stockholders for any other purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the Board of Directors adopts the resolution relating thereto.

A determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.

Only such stockholders as shall be stockholders of record on the date so fixed shall be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, such meeting and any adjournment thereof, or to receive payment of such dividend or other distribution, or to exercise such rights in respect of any such change, conversion or exchange of stock, or to participate in such action, as the case may be, notwithstanding any transfer of any stock on the books of the Corporation after any record date so fixed

ARTICLE VII

Seal

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 85 of 136

Section 7.1 Seal. The seal of the Corporation shall be circular in form and shall bear, in addition to any other emblem or device approved by the Board of Directors, the name of the Corporation, the year of its incorporation and the words "Corporate Seal" and "Delaware". The seal may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or in any other manner reproduced.

ARTICLE VIII

Waiver of Notice

Section 8.1 Waiver of Notice. Whenever notice is required to be given to any stockholder or director of the Corporation under any provision of the GCL or the Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws, a written waiver thereof, signed by the person or persons entitled to notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. In the case of a stockholder, such waiver of notice may be signed by such stockholder's attorney or proxy duly appointed in writing. Attendance of a person at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except when the person attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting at the beginning of the meeting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the stockholders, directors or members of a committee of directors need be specified in any written waiver of notice.

ARTICLE IX

Checks, Notes, Drafts, Etc.

Section 9.1 Checks, Notes, Drafts, Etc. Checks, notes, drafts, acceptances, bills of exchange and other orders or obligations for the payment of money shall be signed by such officer or officers or person or persons as the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof may from time to time designate.

ARTICLE X

Amendments

Section 10.1 Amendments. These Bylaws may be amended, added to, rescinded or repealed at any meeting of the Board of Directors or of the stockholders, provided that notice of the proposed change was given in the notice of the meeting and, in the case of the Board of Directors, in a notice given no less than twenty-four hours prior to the meeting; provided, however, that, in the case of amendments by stockholders, notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws or any provision of law which might otherwise permit a lesser vote or no vote, but in addition to any affirmative vote of the holders of any particular class or series of stock required by law, the Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the voting power with respect thereto, either present in person or represented by proxy, voting together as a single class, shall be required to alter, amend or repeal any provision of these

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 86 of 136

Bylaws. For so long as this Corporation shall control, directly or indirectly, ISE, LLC, before any amendment to or repeal of any provision of the Bylaws of this Corporation shall be effective, the same shall be submitted to the Board of Directors of ISE, LLC and if said Board shall determine that the same must be filed with, or filed with and approved by, the Commission before the same may be effective, under Section 19 of the Exchange Act and the rules promulgated thereunder, then the same shall not be effective until filed with, or filed with and approved by, the Commission, as the case may be.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 87 of 136

All text below is new

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT

OF

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I I	FORMATION OF THE COMPANY	1
Section 1.1.	Formation of the Company.	1
Section 1.2.	Name	
Section 1.3.	Purpose of the Company	
Section 1.4.	Principal Place of Business.	
Section 1.5.	Registered Office; Registered Agent.	
Section 1.6.	Term	
ARTICLE II	SOLE LLC MEMBER; VOTING	2
Section 2.1.	Admission of the Sole LLC Member	2
Section 2.2.	Rights and Powers of the Sole LLC Member; Voting	
Section 2.3.	Liability of the Sole LLC Member.	
ARTICLE III	INTERESTS and TAX TREATMENT	2
Section 3.1.	Interest	2
Section 3.2.	Capital Contributions.	
Section 3.3.	Tax Characterization; Returns; Distributions in Respect of Taxes	
ARTICLE IV	BOOKS OF ACCOUNT; RECORDS, REPORTS, FISCAL MATTERS ANNUAL MEETING	
Section 4.1.	Books and Records.	3
Section 4.2.	Tax Returns.	3
Section 4.3.	Company Bank Accounts; Investments.	4
Section 4.4.	Fiscal Year.	4
Section 4.5.	Annual Meeting.	4
Section 4.6.	Bylaws	4
ARTICLE V	MANAGEMENT; BOARD OF DIRECTORS	4
Section 5.1.	General	4
Section 5.2.	Board of Directors	4
Section 5.3.	Tenure.	5
Section 5.4.	Removal or Resignation.	5
Section 5.5.	Meetings of the Board	
Section 5.6.	Vacancies.	5
Section 5.7.	Management; Officers.	5
Section 5.8.	Limitation on Liability; Indemnification.	5
ARTICLE V	EXCHANGE RIGHTS	5
Section 6.1.	Exchange Rights.	5

Page	89	of	136
------	----	----	-----

Section 6.2.	Trading Rights.	6
Section 6.3.	Voting	6
Section 6.4	Transfer of Exchange Rights	7
Section 6.5.	Concentration/Voting Limits on Exchange Rights	
ARTICLE V	II ASSIGNMENTS; CESSATION OF MEMBERSHIP; WITHDRAWAL OF	
	MEMBERS; LIQUIDATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS	7
Section 7.1.	Assignments; Additional LLC Members.	7
Section 7.2.	Dissolution of Company.	8
Section 7.3.	Distribution in Liquidation.	
Section 7.4.	Termination	
ARTICLE V	III AMENDMENT OF LLC AGREEMENT	8
Section 8.1.	Amendments.	8
	Amendment of Certificate	
ARTICLE IX	MISCELLANEOUS	9
Section 9.1.	Governing Law.	9
Section 9.2.	Pronouns and Number	
Section 9.3.	Headings.	9
Section 9.4.	Partial Enforceability.	

Page 90 of 136

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT

OF

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC

International Securities Exchange Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Sole LLC Member"), hereby forms International Securities Exchange, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Company"), pursuant to and in accordance with the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, 6 Del.C. § 18-101, et seq. (the "Act"), and hereby declares the following to be the Limited Liability Company Agreement (the "LLC Agreement") of the Company.

ARTICLE I FORMATION OF THE COMPANY

- Section 1.1. Formation of the Company. The Company concurrently herewith is being formed as a limited liability company under the Act by the filing of the Certificate of Formation with the Office of the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. The Sole LLC Member agrees to be bound by and comply with the provisions thereof and hereof.
- Section 1.2. Name. The name of the Company is "International Securities Exchange, LLC".
- Section 1.3. Purpose of the Company. The purpose of the Company shall be to conduct the operations of an "exchange" within the meaning of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and to conduct any lawful business or activity whatsoever, as permitted by applicable law and as determined from time to time by the board of directors of the Company (the "Board of Directors").
- Section 1.4. Principal Place of Business. The location of the principal place of business of the Company shall be 60 Broad Street, New York, New York 10004 or such other place as determined by the Board of Directors from time to time.
- Section 1.5. Registered Office; Registered Agent. The registered office of the Company required by the Act to be maintained in the State of Delaware shall be National Registered Agents, Inc., 9 East Loockerman Street, Suite 1B, City of Dover, County of Kent, Delaware 19901 or such other office as the Board of Directors may designate from time to time. The registered agent for the Company shall be National Registered Agents, Inc., or such other registered agent as the Board of Directors may designate from time to time.
- Section 1.6. Term. The Company shall continue until the Company is terminated in accordance with the provisions of this LLC Agreement.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 91 of 136

ARTICLE II SOLE LLC MEMBER; VOTING

Section 2.1. Admission of the Sole LLC Member. Effective as of the date of the filing of the Certificate of Formation with the Office of the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, the Sole LLC Member shall be admitted as the sole member of the Company.

Rights and Powers of the Sole LLC Member; Voting. Other Section 2.2. than as set forth in this LLC Agreement and, to the extent not inconsistent with this LLC Agreement and the Act, the Sole LLC Member shall not participate in the management or control of the Company's business nor shall the Sole LLC Member transact any business for the Company, nor shall the Sole LLC Member have the power to act for or bind the Company, said powers being vested solely and exclusively in the Board of Directors. Subject to the right of the Board of Directors to fill any vacancies as provided in the Constitution (as defined below), the Sole LLC Member shall have the sole right to elect each of the Non-Industry Directors (as defined in the Constitution) and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company as a director (who shall be elected as the Chief Executive Officer and thereafter nominated by the Board of Directors for a directorship by virtue of his or her office, as provided in Section 4.6 of the Constitution), and shall have no other voting rights, except with respect to those matters specifically set forth in this LLC Agreement and as required by the Act. In particular, the Sole LLC Member shall have no voting rights with respect to any increase in the number of authorized PMM Rights (as defined below) or CMM Rights (as defined below; such voting rights referred to as the "Core Rights"), the election of the Exchange Directors (as defined in the Constitution) or any other matters relating to the Exchange Rights (as defined below).

Section 2.3. Liability of the Sole LLC Member. The Sole LLC Member shall not have any liability under this LLC Agreement or under the Act except as provided herein or as required by the Act. Except as required by the Act, the debts, obligations and liabilities of the Company, whether arising in contract, tort or otherwise (including, without limitation, those arising as member, owner or shareholder of another company, partnership or entity) shall be solely the debts, obligations or liability of the Company, and the Sole LLC Member shall not be obligated for any such debt, obligation or liability of the Company solely by reason of being a member of the Company.

ARTICLE III INTERESTS AND TAX TREATMENT

Section 3.1. Interest. The Company shall be authorized to issue a single class of Limited Liability Company Interest, as defined in the Act (the "Interest"), to the Sole LLC Member, which shall convey all of the rights of the Sole LLC Member under this Agreement, all rights to the profits and losses of the Company and the right to receive distributions of the assets of the Company. The Company shall be authorized, but not required, to issue one or more certificates, executed by an authorized officer of the Company, evidencing the Interest.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 92 of 136

Section 3.2. Capital Contributions. The Sole LLC Member may contribute cash or other property to the Company as it shall decide, from time to time. The Sole LLC Member shall not be entitled to interest on or with respect to capital contributions.

Section 3.3. Tax Characterization; Returns; Distributions in Respect of Taxes. It is the intention of the Sole LLC Member that the Company be disregarded as an entity for tax purposes, so that the Sole LLC Member will be treated as owning all of the Company's assets directly, as recognizing all of the Company's income and loss directly, and as being entitled to all distributions for U.S. federal and state income tax purposes. All provisions of the Company's Certificate of Formation and this LLC Agreement are to be construed so as to preserve that tax status. Each of the Directors (as defined below) and officers of the Company and the Sole LLC Member is authorized to file any necessary elections with tax authorities. At the request of the Sole LLC Member, the Company shall make distributions to the Sole LLC Member in amounts sufficient to fund payments of taxes by the Sole LLC Member attributable to the assets, income and losses of the Company.

ARTICLE IV BOOKS OF ACCOUNT; RECORDS, REPORTS, FISCAL MATTERS AND ANNUAL MEETING

Section 4.1. Books and Records. (a) Proper and complete books and records of account shall be kept by the Company, in which shall be entered fully and accurately all transactions and other matters relative to the Company's business as are usually entered into books and records of account maintained by Persons (as defined in the Constitution) engaged in businesses of a like character. The Company books and records shall be kept in a manner determined by the Board of Directors in its sole discretion to be most beneficial for the Company, provided the books and records shall always be kept within the United States.

(b) All confidential information pertaining to the self-regulatory function of the Company (including but not limited to disciplinary matters, trading data, trading practices and audit information) contained in the books and records of the Company shall: (i) not be made available to any persons (other than as provided in the next sentence) other than to those officers, directors, employees and agents of the Company that have a reasonable need to know the contents thereof; (ii) be retained in confidence by the Company and the officers, directors, employees and agents of the Company; and (iii) not be used for any commercial purposes. Nothing in this LLC Agreement shall be interpreted as to limit or impede the rights of the United States Securities Exchange Commission (the "Commission") to access and examine such confidential information pursuant to the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder, or to limit or impede the ability of any officers, directors, employees or agents of the Company to disclose such confidential information to the Commission.

Section 4.2. Tax Returns. The Company shall file all required income and other tax returns required to be filed by the Company for each Fiscal Year (as defined below) or part thereof.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 93 of 136

Section 4.3. Company Bank Accounts; Investments. All Company funds shall be deposited by the Company at such financial institutions as may be approved by the Board of Directors, or shall be invested by the Company, in accordance with parameters established by the Board of Directors, in furtherance of the purposes of the Company.

Section 4.4. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Company (the "Fiscal Year") shall end on December 31 of each calendar year. Each Fiscal Year shall consist of four fiscal quarters ending on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31.

Section 4.5. Annual Meeting. The Board of Directors shall call an annual meeting (the "Annual Meeting") of the Sole LLC Member and the holders of Exchange Rights, as prescribed in Articles I and II of the Company's Constitution, the same initially to be in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and as amended from time to time in accordance with its terms (the "Constitution").

Section 4.6. Bylaws. The Constitution shall constitute the Bylaws of the Company.

ARTICLE V MANAGEMENT; BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 5.1. General. (a) The administration and management of the Company shall be carried out by a Board of Directors elected or appointed in the manner prescribed in the Constitution, and by executive officers appointed from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have the powers and duties provided in Article III of the Constitution; provided, however, that, holders of PMM Rights, CMM Rights and EAM Rights, as such terms are defined in Article VI below, shall have the irrevocable right to vote with respect to certain matters set forth in Article VI below. Each member of the Board of Directors shall constitute a "manager" within the meaning of Section 18-101(10) of the Act.

(b) In discharging his or her responsibilities as a member of the Board of Directors, each director shall take into consideration the effect that his or her actions would have on the ability of the Company to carry out the Company's responsibilities under the Exchange Act and on the ability of the Company: to engage in conduct that fosters and does not interfere with the Company's ability to prevent fraudulent and manipulative acts and practices; to promote just and equitable principles of trade; to foster cooperation and coordination with persons engaged in regulating, clearing, settling, processing information with respect to, and facilitating transactions in securities; to remove impediments to and perfect the mechanisms of a free and open market and a national market system; and, in general, to protect investors and the public interest. In discharging his or her responsibilities as a member of the Board of Directors or as an officer or employee of the Company, each such director, officer or employee shall comply with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder and shall cooperate with the Company and the Commission pursuant to their respective regulatory authority.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 94 of 136

Section 5.2. Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall consist of fifteen (15) directors (the "Directors") as further prescribed in the Constitution. The initial Board of Directors shall consist of the directors as set forth on Exhibit B hereto. At the end of the terms of such initial directors, the Board of Directors shall be elected as prescribed in Article III of the Constitution.

- Section 5.3. Tenure. Each director shall serve for the term prescribed in Article III of the Constitution.
- Section 5.4. Removal or Resignation. Any director may resign or be removed from office at any time in accordance with Article III of the Constitution.
- Section 5.5. Meetings of the Board. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be conducted as provided in Article III of the Constitution.
- Section 5.6. Vacancies. A vacancy on the Board of Directors may be filled in accordance with the requirements set forth in Article III of the Constitution.
- Section 5.7. Management; Officers. The Board of Directors shall have the powers and duties provided herein and in Article III of the Constitution. The Company shall have such officers with such duties, powers and responsibilities as provided in Article IV of the Constitution.
- Section 5.8. Limitation on Liability; Indemnification. Directors shall be indemnified as set forth in Article VI of the Constitution.

ARTICLE VI EXCHANGE RIGHTS

Section 6.1. Exchange Rights. (a) The Company shall have the authority to issue the following series of irrevocable rights (together, "Exchange Rights") having the voting and trading rights and constituting the number of Exchange Rights set forth below:

10 PMM Rights (the "PMM Rights"),

160 CMM Rights (the "CMM Rights"), and

an unlimited number of EAM Rights (the "EAM Rights").

The Exchange Rights shall not convey any portion of the Interest in the Company, and holders of Exchange Rights are not and shall not be deemed to be "members" of the Company for purposes of the Act or this LLC Agreement.

(b) The Board of Directors is hereby expressly authorized at any time, and from time to time, to create and provide for the issuance of Exchange Rights in one or more new series (hereinafter referred to as an "Exchange Right Designation"), to establish the number of rights to be included in each such series, and to fix the designations and relative, participating, optional or other special rights of the rights of each such series and the

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 95 of 136

qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, as shall be stated and expressed in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issue thereof adopted by the Board of Directors, including, but not limited to, the following:

- (1) the designation of and the number of rights constituting such series, which number the Board of Directors may thereafter (except as otherwise provided in the Exchange Right Designation) increase or decrease (but not below the number of rights of such series then outstanding);
- (2) the extent, if any, to which the holders of Exchange Rights of such series shall be entitled to vote as a class or otherwise with respect to the election of directors or otherwise;
- (3) the restrictions, if any, on the issue or reissue of rights of the same series or of any other class or series; and
 - (4) any other relative rights and limitations of that series.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no new series of Exchange Rights shall be issued in connection with the grant of trading rights for equity options or index options in the United States on the exchange facilities of the Company.

- Section 6.2. Trading Rights. (a) PMM Rights. Ownership of a PMM Right shall be a predicate to obtaining the trading rights and privileges of a PMM Right as set forth in the Constitution and the rules of the Company, as amended from time to time (the "Rules") for the Company's Primary Market Makers (as defined in the Constitution). A holder of a PMM Right shall (A) exercise the trading rights and privileges associated with such PMM Right if such holder is approved as a Primary Market Maker under the Constitution and Rules, or (B) lease all (but not less than all) the trading rights and privileges to an entity that is approved as a Primary Market Maker under the Constitution and Rules.
- (b) CMM Rights. Ownership of a CMM Right shall be a predicate to obtaining the trading rights and privileges of a CMM Right as set forth in the Constitution and Rules for the Company's Competitive Market Makers (as defined in the Constitution). A holder of a CMM Right shall (A) exercise the trading rights and privileges associated with a CMM Right if such holder is approved as a Competitive Market Maker under the Constitution and Rules, or (B) lease all (but not less than all) the trading rights and privileges to an entity that is approved as a Competitive Market Maker under the Constitution and Rules.
- (c) EAM Rights. Ownership of an EAM Right shall be a predicate to obtaining the trading rights and privileges of an EAM Right as set forth in the Constitution and Rules for the Company's Electronic Access Members (as defined in the Constitution). Each holder of an EAM Right must be approved as an Electronic Access Member under the Constitution and Rules.
- Section 6.3. Voting. Each holder of Exchange Rights (or a series thereof) shall have one vote in respect of each such Exchange Right thereof held by such holder of

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 96 of 136

record on the books of the Company on each matter for which the vote of the holders thereof is required. Holders of Exchange Rights shall have the following voting rights and no other voting rights:

- (a) Election of Exchange Directors. The holders of Exchange Rights shall have the following rights with respect to election of directors. Holders of PMM Rights shall have the sole right to elect the PMM Directors (as defined in the Constitution). Holders of CMM Rights shall have the sole right to elect the CMM Directors (as defined in the Constitution). Holders of EAM Rights shall have the sole right to elect the EAM Directors (as defined in the Constitution). The Board of Directors shall have the right to fill any vacancies as provided in the Constitution.
- (b) Core Rights. Any change in or amendment or modification of the Core Rights or the definition of the term "Core Rights" shall be submitted to a vote of the holders of PMM Rights and CMM Rights for their consideration and approval. Any such action must receive the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the then outstanding PMM Rights, voting as a class, and the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the then outstanding CMM Rights, voting as a class, in order to be approved.
- Section 6.4 Transfer of Exchange Rights. The PMM Rights and CMM Rights shall be transferable (in whole but not in part) in accordance with the Constitution and Rules of the Company. The EAM Rights shall not be transferable. In the event of a withdrawal of a holder of EAM Rights, the EAM Rights of such holder shall be transferred back to the Company as provided in the Constitution.
- Section 6.5. Concentration/Voting Limits on Exchange Rights. (a) A holder or lessee of Exchange Rights, together with any affiliate, as such term is defined in the Constitution, may not own (or exercise any of the non-trading rights associated with) more than twenty percent (20%) of the PMM Rights, the CMM Rights or the EAM Rights. The Company may establish limitations that further limit the number of Exchange Rights that may be owned by an individual or entity.
- (b) An Exchange Member (as defined in the Constitution), together with any affiliate, may not be approved to exercise the trading rights associated with more than twenty percent (20%) of the PMM Rights, nor more than twenty percent (20%) of the CMM Rights. The Company may establish further limitations relating to the Company's approval of an Exchange Member's ability to effect Exchange Transactions, as such term is defined in the Constitution.

ARTICLE VII

ASSIGNMENTS; CESSATION OF MEMBERSHIP; WITHDRAWAL OF MEMBERS; LIQUIDATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS

Section 7.1. Assignments; Additional LLC Members. The Sole LLC Member may assign all (but not less than all) of its Interest; provided, however, such assignment will be subject to prior approval by the Commission pursuant to the rule filing procedure under Section 19 of the Exchange Act. The assignment of all of the Interest shall

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 97 of 136

entitle the assignee to exercise the rights of the Sole LLC Member of the Company under this LLC Agreement and to enjoy all of the benefits of the Interest. At no time may the Company have more than one holder of the Interest.

Section 7.2. Dissolution of Company. (a) The Company shall be dissolved, and its affairs wound up as provided herein commencing upon the earliest to occur of:

- (i) the date on which the Board of Directors consents to its dissolution by approval of a majority of the Board of Directors;
- (ii) the date on which is consummated the sale or disposition by the Company of substantially all of its assets; or
- (iii) the date when any other event occurs that causes the dissolution of a limited liability company under the Act, unless the business of the Company is continued by unanimous approval of the Board of Directors within sixty (60) days following the occurrence of any such event and such continuance is permitted under the Act
- (b) In the event of the dissolution of the Company for any reason, the Board of Directors shall wind up the affairs of the Company and liquidate the Company's assets. The Board of Directors shall have full right and unlimited discretion to determine the time, manner and terms of any sale or sales of Company assets pursuant to such liquidation, giving due regard to the activity and condition of the relevant market and general financial and economic conditions.
- (c) The Board of Directors shall have all of the rights and powers with respect to the assets and liabilities of the Company in connection with the winding up of the affairs of the Company as the Board of Directors would have with respect to the assets and liabilities of the Company prior to the dissolution of the Company.
- Section 7.3. Distribution in Liquidation. Upon the payment, provision for payment or other satisfaction of the liabilities of the Company, the Company's remaining assets shall be distributed to the Sole LLC Member.
- Section 7.4. Termination. Upon the dissolution and the completion of the winding up of the Company and the distribution of the remaining assets of the Company as provided in Section 7.3, the Board of Directors shall cause to be executed and filed a Certificate of Cancellation of the Company with the office of the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware in accordance with the Act.

ARTICLE VIII AMENDMENT OF LLC AGREEMENT

Section 8.1. Amendments. Amendments to this LLC Agreement may be made by the Board of Directors; provided, however, that (i) if such amendment would alter or change the powers, preferences or special rights of one or more series of Exchange Rights so as to affect them adversely, or increase the aggregate number of authorized PMM Rights

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 98 of 136

or CMM Rights, such amendment shall also be approved by the holders of a majority of such Exchange Rights entitled to vote thereon, in the manner set forth herein and in the Constitution, and to the extent required by Section 6.3(b) of this LLC Agreement, the holders of PMM Rights, voting as a separate class, and CMM Rights, voting as a separate class, in accordance with Section 6.3(b), and (ii) if such amendment would alter or change the powers, preferences or special rights of the Sole LLC Member's Interest so as to affect it adversely, such amendment shall also be approved by the Sole LLC Member, in the manner set forth herein and in the Constitution.

Section 8.2. Amendment of Certificate. In the event this LLC Agreement shall be amended pursuant to Section 8.1, the Board of Directors shall cause the Company to amend the Certificate of Formation to reflect such change if the Board of Directors deems such amendment of the Certificate of Formation to be necessary or appropriate.

ARTICLE IX MISCELLANEOUS

- Section 9.1. Governing Law. This LLC Agreement and the rights of the parties hereunder shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the law of the State of Delaware without regard to the conflicts of law principles thereof.
- Section 9.2. Pronouns and Number. Wherever from the context it appears appropriate, each term stated in either the singular or the plural shall include the singular and the plural, and pronouns stated in either the masculine, feminine or neuter shall include the masculine, feminine and neuter.
- Section 9.3. Headings. Headings contained in this LLC Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and in no way define, limit or extend the scope or intent of this LLC Agreement or any provision hereof.
- Section 9.4. Partial Enforceability. If any provision of this LLC Agreement, or the application of such provision to any Person or circumstance, shall be held invalid, the remainder of this LLC Agreement, or the application of such provision to Persons or circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid, shall not be affected thereby.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Sole LLC Member has caused this LLC Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer on November 18, 2004.

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE HOLDINGS, INC.

By /s/ David Krell
David Krell
President and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT B

Initial Board of Directors of International Securities Exchange, LLC

David Krell and the following individuals shall be appointed as the initial directors of ISE, LLC:

Class 1	Class 2
Ivers W. Riley	Frank J. Jones, Ph.D.
Barbara Diamond	John F. Marshall, Ph.D.
Mark P. Kritzman	Sarah A. Miller
Richard Schmalensee, Ph.D.	Carleton Day Pearl
James V. Harkness	Jason Lehman
William A. Porter	

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006 Page 100 of 136

All text below is new

CONSTITUTION

OF

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
ARTICLE I SOLE LLC MEMBER	1
Section 1.1 Sole LLC Member	
Section 1.2 Meetings of Sole LLC Member	
Section 1.3 Special Meetings of Sole LLC Member	
Section 1.4. Notice of Sole LLC Member Meetings; Proxies; Record Date;	
No Action by Written Consent	1
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
ARTICLE II EXCHANGE RIGHTS	2
Section 2.1 Annual Meeting	2
Section 2.2 Special Meetings	3
Section 2.3 Notice of Meetings	3
Section 2.4 Quorum	3
Section 2.5 Voting	
Section 2.6 Proxies	
Section 2.7 Record Date	
Section 2.8 List of Holders	
Section 2.9 No Action by Written Consent.	5
A DELGLE WARDENESS	_
ARTICLE III DIRECTORS	
Section 3.1 General Powers	
Section 3.2 Number, Tenure, Qualifications and Voting	
Section 3.3 Vacancies and Newly Created Directorships	
Section 3.4 Resignation	
Section 3.5 Removal	
Section 3.6 Meetings	
Section 3.7 Quorum and Voting	
Section 3.8 Written Consent of Directors in Lieu of a Meeting	
Section 3.10 Nomination of Directors	
Section 3.11 Interested Directors	
Section 3.12 Chairman of the Board	
Section 3.12 Chairman of the Board	
Section 3.13 Vice Chairman of the Board	1
ARTICLE IV OFFICERS	10
Section 4.1 Officers	10
Section 4.2 Election and Term of Office	11
Section 4.3 Resignation and Removal	
Section 4.4 Compensation and Bond	
Section 4.5 Qualification	
Section 4.6 Chief Executive Officer	
Section 4.7 Vice Presidents	12
Section 4.8 Treasurer	12
Section 4.9 Secretary	12

Page 1	02	of	136
--------	----	----	-----

SR-ISE-2006-04 Date Submitted: January 12, 2006 Page 103 of 136

Section 12.6	Eligibility for Trading Privileges; Members	21
	Membership Agreement	
	Registration of Individual Memberships for Organizations	
Section 12.9	Acquisition and Transfer of Exchange Rights	22
ARTICLE XIII DEF	INITION OF TERMS	22
Section 13.1	Definitions	22

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006 Page 104 of 136

CONSTITUTION

OF

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC

ARTICLE I SOLE LLC MEMBER

Section 1.1 Sole LLC Member. International Securities Exchange, LLC (the "Exchange") is a single member limited liability company with one limited liability company interest currently authorized (the "LLC Interest"). The holder of the LLC interest is International Securities Exchange Holdings, Inc., which may assign the LLC Interest as provided in the LLC Agreement (the "Sole LLC Member").

Section 1.2 Meetings of Sole LLC Member. (a) Meetings of the Sole LLC Member shall be held at such place within or without the State of Delaware, as may be fixed by the Board of Directors in conjunction with meetings of holders of Exchange Rights (as defined in Article VI of the Limited Liability Company Agreement of the Exchange (the "LLC Agreement")).

(b) The Sole LLC Member shall meet annually along with the holders of Exchange Rights on such date and place and at such time as may be designated by the Board of Directors provided in Section 2.1 to elect the members of the Board of Directors and transact such other business as may be set forth in the written notice of the meeting.

Section 1.3 Special Meetings of Sole LLC Member. A special meeting of the Sole LLC Member may be called by the Chairman of the Board of the Exchange or a majority of the Board of Directors for any purpose or purposes, and shall be called by the Secretary of the Exchange at the request of the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the total number of directors which the Exchange would at the time have if there were no vacancies (the "Whole Board"), including no less than fifty percent (50%) of the Non-Industry Directors. A special meeting shall also be called by the Secretary of the Exchange at the request of the Sole LLC Member. The Board of Directors may designate the place of meeting for any special meeting, and if no such designation is made, the place of meeting shall be the principal executive offices of the Exchange.

Section 1.4. Notice of Sole LLC Member Meetings; Proxies; Record Date; No Action by Written Consent. Whenever the Sole LLC Member is required or permitted to take any action at a meeting, unless notice is waived as provided in Section 8.1 of this Constitution, a written notice of the meeting shall be given which shall state the place, date and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called. Unless otherwise provided by law, and except in instances in which the Sole LLC Member duly waives notice, the written notice of any meeting shall be given personally or by mail, not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting to the Sole LLC Member. If mailed, notice shall be deemed given when

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 105 of 136

deposited in the mail, postage prepaid, directed to the Sole LLC Member at the address of the Sole LLC Member as it appears on the records of the Exchange. When a meeting is adjourned to another time or place, notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting if the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting the Exchange may transact any business which might have been transacted at the original meeting. If, however, the adjournment is for more than thirty (30) days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to the Sole LLC Member.

In order that the Exchange may determine the holder of the Interest entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of the Sole LLC Member or any adjournment thereof or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix a record date, which record date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors, and which shall not be more than sixty (60) nor less than ten (10) days before the date of such meeting, nor more than sixty (60) days prior to any other action. If no record date is fixed by the Board of Directors, (1) the record date for determining the holder of the Interest entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of the Sole LLC Member shall be at the close of business on the day next preceding the date on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held, and (2) the record date for determining the holder of the Interest for any other purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the Board of Directors adopts the resolution relating thereto. A determination of the holder of the Interest of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of the Sole LLC Member shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting. Only such holder of the Interest as shall be holder of record on the date so fixed shall be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, such meeting and any adjournment thereof, or to participate in such action, as the case may be, notwithstanding any transfer of the Interest on the books of the Exchange after any record date so fixed.

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Sole LLC Member must be taken at any annual or special meeting of the Sole LLC Member and may not be taken by any consent in writing by the Sole LLC Member.

ARTICLE II

EXCHANGE RIGHTS

Section 2.1 Annual Meeting. An annual meeting of the holders of Exchange Rights shall be held on such date and at such time as may be designated by the Board of Directors at the principal executive offices of the Exchange, or at such other place within or without the State of Delaware as may be fixed by the Board of Directors for the purpose of electing directors to fill expiring terms.

Section 2.2 Special Meetings. A special meeting of the holders of Exchange Rights entitled to vote on any business to be considered at any such meeting may be called by the Chairman of the Board of the Exchange or a majority of the Board of Directors for any

Page 106 of 136

purpose or purposes, and shall be called by the Secretary of the Exchange at the request of the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the Whole Board, including no less than fifty percent (50%) of the Non-Industry Directors. The Board of Directors may designate the place of meeting for any special meeting, and if no such designation is made, the place of meeting shall be the principal executive offices of the Exchange.

Section 2.3 Notice of Meetings. Whenever holders of Exchange Rights are required or permitted to take any action at a meeting, unless notice is waived as provided in Section 8.1 of this Constitution, a written notice of the meeting shall be given which shall state the place, date and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called.

Unless otherwise provided by law, and except as to any holder of Exchange Rights duly waiving notice, the written notice of any meeting shall be given personally or by mail, not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting to each holder of Exchange Rights entitled to vote at such meeting. If mailed, notice shall be deemed given when deposited in the mail, postage prepaid, directed to each such holder at such holder's address as it appears on the records of the Exchange. Any previously scheduled meeting of the holders of Exchange Rights may be postponed by resolution of the Board of Directors and upon public notice given by press release prior to the time previously scheduled for such meeting of holders.

When a meeting is adjourned to another time or place, notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting if the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting the Exchange may transact any business which might have been transacted at the original meeting. If, however, the adjournment is for more than thirty (30) days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each holder of Exchange Rights of record entitled to vote at the meeting.

Section 2.4 Quorum. Except as otherwise provided by law, the LLC Agreement or by this Constitution, at any meeting of holders of Exchange Rights the holders of a majority of the voting power of the outstanding Exchange Rights entitled to vote generally in the election of Exchange Directors (the "Voting Rights"), either present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business at such meeting, except that, when specified business is to be voted on by a series voting as a class, the holders of a majority of the voting power of such series entitled to vote shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of such business. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the chairman of the meeting or a majority of the voting power of the Voting Rights so represented may adjourn the meeting from time to time, whether or not there is such a quorum (or in the case of specified business to be voted on as a series, the chairman or a majority of the rights of such series entitled to vote which are so represented may adjourn the meeting with respect to such specified business). No notice of the time and place of adjourned meetings need be given except as provided in the last paragraph of Section 2.3 of this Constitution. The holders of Exchange Rights present at a duly organized meeting may

Page 107 of 136

continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of a sufficient number of holders to result in less than a quorum.

Section 2.5 Voting. Except with respect to the directors elected by the Sole LLC Member, as set forth in Section 3.2(b) hereof, whenever directors are to be elected at a meeting, they shall be elected by a plurality of the votes cast at the meeting by the holders of Exchange Rights entitled to vote thereon. Whenever any company action, other than the election of directors, is to be taken by vote of the holders of Exchange Rights at a meeting, such company action shall, except as otherwise required by law, by the LLC Agreement or by this Constitution, be authorized by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the Exchange Rights present or represented by proxy and entitled to vote with respect to such company action.

Except as otherwise provided by law, or by the LLC Agreement, each holder of record of Exchange Rights entitled to vote on any matter at any meeting of holders of Exchange Rights shall be entitled to one vote for each Exchange Right standing in the name of such holder on the books of the Exchange on the record date for the determination of the holders entitled to vote at the meeting.

Upon the demand of any holder of Exchange Rights entitled to vote, the vote for directors or the vote on any other matter at a meeting shall be by written ballot, but otherwise the method of voting and the manner in which votes are counted shall be discretionary with the presiding officer at the meeting.

Section 2.6 Proxies. Each holder of Exchange Rights entitled to vote at a meeting of holders may authorize another person or persons to act for him or her by proxy, but no such proxy shall be voted or acted upon after eleven (11) months from its date, unless the proxy provides for a longer period. Every proxy shall be signed by the holder or by his or her duly authorized attorney. Such proxy must be filed with the Secretary of the Exchange or his or her representative at or before the time of the meeting.

Section 2.7 Record Date. In order that the Exchange may determine the holders of Exchange Rights entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of holders or any adjournment thereof or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix a record date, which record date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors, and which shall not be more than sixty (60) nor less than ten (10) days before the date of such meeting, nor more than sixty (60) days prior to any other action.

If no record date is fixed by the Board of Directors, (1) the record date for determining holders of Exchange Rights entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of holders shall be at the close of business on the day next preceding the date on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held, and (2) the record date for determining holders of Exchange Rights for any other purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the Board of Directors adopts the resolution relating thereto.

Page 108 of 136

A determination of holders of Exchange Rights of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of holders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.

Only such holders of Exchange Rights as shall be holders of record on the date so fixed shall be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, such meeting and any adjournment thereof, or to participate in such action, as the case may be, notwithstanding any transfer of any rights on the books of the Exchange after any record date so fixed.

Section 2.8 List of Holders. The Secretary of the Exchange shall prepare and make, at least ten (10) days before every meeting of holders of Exchange Rights, a complete list of the holders entitled to vote at the meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, and showing the address of each holder and the number of Exchange Rights registered in the name of each holder. Such list shall be open to the examination of any holder, for any purpose germane to the meeting for a period of at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting on a reasonably accessible electronic network, provided that information required to gain access to such list is provided with the notice of the meeting, or during ordinary business hours, at the principal place of business of the Exchange. In the event that the Exchange determines to make the list available on an electronic network, the Exchange may take reasonable steps to ensure that such information is available only to holders of Exchange Rights. If the meeting is to be held at a place, then the list shall also be produced at the place of the meeting during the whole time thereof, and may be inspected by any holder of Exchange Rights who is present. If the meeting is to be held solely by means of remote communication, then the list shall also be open to the examination of any holders of Exchange Rights during the whole time of the meeting on a reasonably accessible electronic network, and the information required to access such list shall be provided with the notice of the meeting. Nothing in this Section shall require the Exchange to include electronic mail addresses or other electronic contact information on such list.

The list of holders of Exchange Rights shall be the only evidence as to who are the holders entitled to examine the list required by this Section or the books of the Exchange, or to vote in person or by proxy at any meeting of holders of Exchange Rights.

Section 2.9 No Action by Written Consent. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the holders of Exchange Rights must be taken at an annual meeting or special meeting of the holders of Exchange Rights and may not be taken by any consent in writing by such holders.

ARTICLE III

DIRECTORS

Section 3.1 General Powers. The business and affairs of the Exchange shall be managed by or under the direction of its Board of Directors. In addition to the powers and authorities by this Constitution expressly conferred upon it, the Board of Directors may exercise all such powers of the Exchange and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 109 of 136

the LLC Agreement or by this Constitution required to be exercised or done by the Sole LLC Member or the holders of Exchange Rights.

Section 3.2 Number, Tenure, Qualifications and Voting. (a) The number of directors shall be fixed at fifteen (15) and may be changed only with the approval of the affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds of the then outstanding Exchange Rights.

- (b) The Board shall be composed as follows:
- (i) Two (2) directors shall be officers, directors or partners of Primary Market Makers and shall be elected by a plurality of the holders of the PMM Rights voting together as a class (the "PMM Directors"),
- (ii) Two (2) directors shall be officers, directors or partners of Competitive Market Makers and shall be elected by a plurality of the holders of the CMM Rights voting together as a class (the "CMM Directors"),
- (iii) Two (2) directors shall be officers, directors or partners of Electronic Access Members and shall be elected by the plurality of the holders of the EAM Rights voting together as a class (the "EAM Directors"),
- (iv) Eight (8) directors shall also meet the requirements of non-industry representatives and shall be elected by the Sole LLC Member (the "Non-Industry Directors"), at least two (2) of whom shall be public representatives (the "Public Directors"), and
- (v) One (1) director shall be the person then holding the office of President and Chief Executive Officer of the Exchange and shall be elected by the Sole LLC Member.
- (c) The Exchange Directors, the Non-Industry Directors and the Public Directors shall be divided into two classes, and designated as Class I or Class II directors. The Class I directors shall be initially elected for a term expiring at the 2005 annual meeting of the Sole LLC Member and holders of Exchange Rights and the Class II directors shall be initially elected for a term expiring at the 2006 annual meeting of Sole LLC Member and holders of Exchange Rights. At each annual meeting of the holders of Exchange Rights and the Sole LLC Member, the holders of Exchange Rights and the Sole LLC Member shall elect the successors to the directors whose terms are expiring. Each of Class I and Class II shall be comprised of half of the Non-Industry Directors and half of each of the PMM Directors, CMM Directors and EAM Directors. The Exchange Directors of each class shall hold office until their successors shall have been duly elected and qualified. At each succeeding annual meeting of the Sole LLC Member and the holders of Exchange Rights, the successors of the class of directors whose term expires at that meeting shall be elected to hold office for a term expiring at the annual meeting of holders of Exchange Rights and the Sole LLC Member held in the second year following the year of their election, and until their successors are elected and qualified. The President and Chief Executive Officer shall hold office for a term of one (1) year, or until such earlier time as such person no longer serves as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Exchange.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 110 of 136

(d) All meetings of the Board of Directors of the Exchange (and any committees of the Exchange) pertaining to the self-regulatory function of the Exchange (including disciplinary matters) or relating to the structure of the market which the Exchange regulates shall be closed to all persons other than members of the Board of Directors and officers, staff, counsel or other advisors whose participation is necessary or appropriate to the proper discharge of such regulatory functions and any representatives of the Commission. In no event shall members of the Board of Directors of the Sole LLC Member who are not also members of the Board of Directors of the Exchange or any officers, staff, counsel or advisors of the Sole LLC Member who are not also officers, staff, counsel or advisors of the Exchange be allowed to participate in any meetings of the Board of Directors of the Exchange (or any committees of the Exchange) pertaining to the self-regulatory function of the Exchange (including disciplinary matters) or relating to the structure of the market which the Exchange regulates.

- (e) Qualifications and other Requirements.
- (i) No Exchange Member shall have more than one officer, director or partner of such Exchange Member elected to the Board of Directors during any term.
- (ii) The President and Chief Executive Officer shall serve on the Board only for so long as such person remains the President and Chief Executive Officer.
- (iii) No Exchange Director may serve on the Board of Directors for more than three (3) consecutive terms. In determining the amount of time a Director has served on the Board of Directors, such Director's service as a director for any predecessor entity of the Exchange shall be taken into account. Any such director may be eligible for election following a two-year hiatus from service on the Board of Directors.

Section 3.3 Vacancies and Newly Created Directorships. In the event that a director position becomes available, whether through a vacancy resulting from death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office or other cause, or a newly created directorship resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors, the Nominating Committee, in the case of a vacancy for an Exchange Directorship, and the Corporate Governance Committee, in the case of a vacancy for a Non-Industry Directorship, shall nominate, and the Board of Directors shall elect, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors, though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors, a person satisfying the qualifications for the class of directors in which there is a vacancy, and any director so chosen shall hold office for a term expiring at the annual meeting of holders of Exchange Rights and the Sole LLC Member at which the term of office of the class to which such director has been elected expires and until such director's successor shall have been duly elected and qualified. No decrease in the number of authorized directors constituting the Whole Board shall shorten the term of any incumbent director.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 111 of 136

Section 3.4 Resignation. Any director may resign at any time upon written notice to the Exchange. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein or, if the time be not specified, upon receipt thereof, and the acceptance of such resignation, unless required by the terms thereof, shall not be necessary to make such resignation effective.

Section 3.5 Removal. Any director may be removed from office at any time, but only for cause and only by the affirmative vote of, in the case of the Non-Industry Directors, the Sole LLC Member, and in the case of the Exchange Directors, the holders of at least a majority of the Exchange Rights entitled to vote with respect to such Exchange Director.

Section 3.6 Meetings. Meetings of the Board of Directors, regular or special, may be held at any place within or without the State of Delaware. Members of the Board of Directors, or of any committee designated by the Board of Directors, may participate in a meeting of the Board of Directors or such committee by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and participation in a meeting by such means shall constitute presence in person at such meeting. An annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held as soon as practicable following each annual meeting of holders of Exchange Rights and the Sole LLC Member. The Board of Directors may fix times and places for such annual and additional regular meetings of the Board of Directors and no further notice of such meetings need be given. A special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held whenever called by the Chairman of the Board or by the Secretary if one (1) PMM Director and one (1) CMM Director shall request such a meeting, or if a majority of the Non-Industry Directors shall request such a meeting, at such time and place as shall be specified in the notice or waiver thereof. The person or persons authorized to call a special meeting of the Board of Directors may fix the place and time of the meetings. Notice of any special meeting shall be given to each director at his or her business or residence in writing, by electronic mail or by telegram or by telephone communication. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed adequately delivered when deposited in the United States mails so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid, at least five (5) days before such meeting. If by electronic mail, such notice shall be deemed adequately delivered when the electronic mail is sent at least twenty-four hours before the meeting. If by telegram, such notice shall be deemed adequately delivered when the telegram is delivered to the telegraph company at least twenty-four hours before such meeting. If by facsimile transmission, such notice shall be transmitted at least twenty-four hours before such meeting. If by telephone, the notice shall be given at least twelve hours prior to the time set for the meeting. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors need be specified in the notice of such meeting, except for amendments to this Constitution as provided under Section 10.1 of this Constitution.

Section 3.7 Quorum and Voting. A number of directors equal to at least a majority of the Whole Board, including no less than fifty percent (50%) of the Non-Industry Directors, provided that such requirement shall be deemed satisfied if at least fifty percent (50%) of the Non-Industry Directors are (i) present at or (ii) have waived their attendance for a meeting after receiving an agenda prior to such meeting, shall constitute a quorum for the

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 112 of 136

transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors, but if there be less than a quorum, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time, and no further notice thereof need be given other than announcement at the meeting so adjourned. Except as otherwise provided by law, by the LLC Agreement, or by this Constitution, the vote of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors.

Section 3.8 Written Consent of Directors in Lieu of a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board of Directors or of such committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, and the writing or writings are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board of Directors or of such committee.

Section 3.9 Compensation. Directors may receive compensation for services to the Exchange in their capacities as directors or otherwise in such manner and in such amounts as may be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Section 3.10 Nomination of Directors. (a) (i) Nominees for election of the Exchange Directors shall be selected by the Nominating Committee as described in Section 5.3(c) or as provided in this Section 3.10.

(ii) In addition to the nominees for Exchange Directors named by the Nominating Committee, persons eligible to serve as such may be nominated for election to the Board of Directors by a petition, signed by the holders of not less than five percent (5%) of the outstanding Exchange Rights of the series entitled to elect such person if there are more than eighty (80) Exchange Rights in the series entitled to vote, ten percent (10%) of the outstanding rights of such series entitled to elect such person if there are between eighty (80) and forty (40) Exchange Rights in the series entitled to vote, and twenty-five percent (25%) of the outstanding Exchange Rights of such series entitled to elect such person if there are less than forty (40) Exchange Rights in the series entitled to vote. Such petition must be filed with the Secretary at least 45 days prior to the annual meeting for such year.

For purposes of determining whether a person has been nominated for election by petition by the requisite percentage, no Exchange Member, alone or together with its affiliates, may account for more than fifty percent (50%) of the signatures of the holders of outstanding Exchange Rights of the series entitled to elect such person, and any such signatures by such Exchange Member, alone or together with its affiliates, in excess of such fifty percent (50%) limitation shall be disregarded.

(b) (i) Nominees for election of the Non-Industry Directors, including the Public Directors, shall be selected by the Corporate Governance Committee or by the Sole LLC Member in the manner set forth in subparagraph (ii) below. In the event any nominee named by the Corporate Governance Committee withdraws or becomes ineligible, the Corporate Governance Committee may select an additional nominee to replace the withdrawn or ineligible nominee. In making nominations, such committee shall give due

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 113 of 136

consideration to a member's longevity of service on the Board of Directors and the benefits of rotation of the Non-Industry Directors serving on the Board of Directors.

- (ii) In addition to the nominees named by the Corporate Governance Committee, persons may be nominated for election to the Board as Non-Industry Directors by a petition, signed by the Sole LLC Member. Such petition must be filed with the Secretary at least 45 days prior to the annual meeting for such year.
- (c) Nominees for director shall provide the Secretary such information as is reasonably necessary to serve as the basis for a determination of the nominee's classification as a Non-Industry Director, a Public Director or an Exchange Director.
- Section 3.11 Interested Directors. (a) No director shall directly or indirectly participate as a member of the Board of Directors or of any committee in any matter which would substantially affect his or her interest or the interests of any person in whom he or she is directly or indirectly interested, although interested directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at the meeting of the Board of Directors or of a committee which authorizes actions with respect to such matter.
- (b) An interested director shall disqualify himself or herself or shall be disqualified by a vote of the Board of Directors or the chairman of any committee.
- (c) For purposes of this Section, a director is not personally interested by reason of being or having been a member of a committee which has made prior inquiry, examination or investigation of the subject under consideration, nor in the determination of matters that may affect the Exchange Members as a whole or certain types of Exchange Members, and Exchange Directors shall not be prohibited from participating in such determination by reason of their participation in the normal course of the conduct of Exchange business.
- Section 3.12 Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board shall be a Non-Industry Director who is elected by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the directors then in office. The Chairman of the Board shall serve as such for a term of one (1) year. The Chairman of the Board shall have the authority provided in this Constitution and the Rules, but shall not be an officer of the Exchange. The Chairman of the Board shall preside at all meetings of holders of Exchange Rights, the Sole LLC Member, and of the Board of Directors.

Section 3.13 Vice Chairman of the Board. The Vice Chairman of the Board shall be elected from among the directors by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the directors then in office. The Vice Chairman of the Board shall serve as such for a term of one (1) year. In the case of the absence or inability of the Chairman of the Board to act, or a vacancy in the office of the Chairman of the Board, the Vice Chairman of the Board shall exercise the powers and discharge the duties of the Chairman of the Board, unless determined otherwise by the Board of Directors. The Vice Chairman of the Board shall have the authority provided in this Constitution and the Rules, but shall not be an officer of the Exchange.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 114 of 136

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS

Secretary and a Treasurer, and one or more Vice Presidents, one or more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistant Treasurers. The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Exchange. All officers elected by the Board of Directors shall have such powers and duties as generally pertain to their respective offices, subject to the specific provisions of this Article IV, together with such other powers and duties as from time to time may be conferred by the Board of Directors or any committee thereof. Any number of such offices may be held by the same person, but no officer shall execute, acknowledge or verify any instrument in more than one capacity. The Board of Directors may elect, and may delegate power to elect, such other officers, agents and employees as it may deem necessary or proper, who shall hold their offices or positions for such terms, have such authority and perform such duties as may from time to time be determined by or pursuant to authorization of the Board of Directors.

Section 4.2 Election and Term of Office. The officers of the Exchange shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors held after each annual meeting of the Sole LLC Member and holders of Exchange Rights. If the election of officers shall not be accomplished at such meeting, such election shall be accomplished as soon thereafter as convenient. Subject to Section 4.3 of this Constitution, each officer shall hold office until his or her successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified or until his or her death, removal or resignation.

Section 4.3 Resignation and Removal. Any officer may resign at any time upon written notice to the Exchange. Any elected officer may be removed by a majority of the members of the Whole Board, with or without cause, at any time. The Board of Directors may delegate such power of removal as to officers, agents and employees not elected by the Board of Directors. Such removal shall be without prejudice to a person's contract rights, if any, but the appointment of any person as an officer, agent or employee of the Exchange shall not itself create contract rights.

Section 4.4 Compensation and Bond. The compensation of the officers of the Exchange shall be fixed by the Board of Directors, but this power may be delegated to any officer in respect of other officers under his or her control. The Exchange may secure the fidelity of any or all of its officers, agents or employees by bond or otherwise.

Section 4.5 Qualification. The officers and employees of the Exchange shall not be holders of Exchange Rights nor affiliated with an Exchange Member.

Section 4.6 Chief Executive Officer(a) The President and Chief Executive Officer shall be elected by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 4.1 and shall be nominated for a directorship by virtue of his or her office.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 115 of 136

(b) The President and Chief Executive Officer shall manage the affairs of the Exchange and shall be the representative of the Exchange in all public matters.

- (c) The President and Chief Executive Officer shall not engage in any other occupation during his or her incumbency except with the approval of the Board of Directors.
- (d) The President and Chief Executive Officer may be removed by a vote of two-thirds of the directors then in office, exclusive of the President and Chief Executive Officer, in the event that he or she refuses, fails, neglects or is unable to discharge his or her duties or for any cause affecting the best interests of the Exchange.
- (e) In the case of temporary absence or inability to act, the President and Chief Executive Officer may designate any other officer to assume all the functions and discharge all the duties of the President and Chief Executive Officer. Upon his or her failure to do so, or if the office of President and Chief Executive Officer is vacant, any officer so designated by the Board of Directors shall perform the functions and duties of the President and Chief Executive Officer.

Section 4.7 Vice Presidents. Each Vice President shall have such powers and perform such duties as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.

Section 4.8 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have charge of all funds and securities of the Exchange, shall endorse the same for deposit or collection when necessary and deposit the same to the credit of the Exchange in such banks or depositaries as the Board of Directors may authorize. He or she may endorse all commercial documents requiring endorsements for or on behalf of the Exchange, may sign all receipts and vouchers for payments made to the Exchange and may disburse funds in accordance with the Rules or as directed by the Board of Directors. He or she shall have all such further powers and duties as generally are incident to the position of Treasurer or as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors.

Section 4.9 Secretary. The Secretary shall record all the proceedings of the meetings of the holders of Exchange Rights, the Sole LLC Member and the Board of Directors in a book to be kept for that purpose and shall also record therein all action taken by written consent of directors in lieu of a meeting. He or she shall determine whether a nominee for either director or a prospective committee member meets the required qualifications for such a position and shall review the qualifications of such persons at least annually. He or she shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices of the Exchange. He or she shall have charge of the ledger setting forth the holders of Exchange Rights and such other books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct, but he or she may delegate responsibility for maintaining such ledger to any transfer agent appointed by the Board of Directors. He or she shall have all such further powers and duties as generally are incident to the position of Secretary or as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors.

Section 4.10 Assistant Treasurers. In the absence or inability to act of the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer may perform all the duties and exercise all the powers of

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 116 of 136

the Treasurer. An Assistant Treasurer shall also perform such other duties as the Treasurer or the Board of Directors may assign to him.

Section 4.11 Assistant Secretaries. In the absence or inability to act of the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary may perform all the duties and exercise all the powers of the Secretary. An Assistant Secretary shall also perform such other duties as the Secretary or the Board of Directors may assign to him.

Section 4.12 Delegation of Duties. In case of the absence of any officer of the Exchange, or for any other reason that the Board of Directors may deem sufficient, the Board of Directors may confer for the time being the powers or duties, or any of them, of such officer upon any other officer or upon any director.

ARTICLE V

COMMITTEES

Section 5.1 Committees of the Board of Directors. (a) The Board of Directors may from time to time, by resolution passed by a majority of the Whole Board, designate one or more additional committees (the "Board Committees"), each committee to consist of one or more directors of the Exchange. The Board of Directors may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any Board Committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee. The resolution of the Board of Directors may, in addition or alternatively, provide that in the absence or disqualification of a member of a Board Committee, the member or members thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not he, she or they constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the Board of Directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified member. Any such Board Committee, to the extent provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors or in this Constitution, shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the Exchange, and may authorize the seal of the Exchange to be affixed to all papers which may require it, except with respect to those matters referred to in Section 5.2 of this Constitution and as otherwise provided by law. Unless the resolution of the Board of Directors expressly so provides, no such Board Committee shall have the power or authority to authorize the issuance of Exchange Rights. Any such Board Committee may adopt rules governing the method of calling and time and place of holding its meetings. Unless otherwise set forth herein or as provided by the Board of Directors, a majority of any such Board Committee (or the member thereof, if only one) shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the vote of a majority of the members of such Board Committee present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of such Board Committee. Each such Board Committee shall keep a record of its acts and proceedings and shall report thereon to the Board of Directors whenever requested so to do. Any or all members of any such Board Committee may be removed, with or without cause, by resolution of the Board of Directors, passed by a majority of the Whole Board.

(b) A committee or subcommittee, other than a Board Committee, may consist of industry and non-industry representatives who are not directors. Such committee

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 117 of 136

members may be appointed by the Board of Directors or the Board of Directors may delegate such authority. Such committee members may only be removed, with or without cause, by resolution of the Board of Directors, passed by a majority of the Whole Board. Each prospective committee member who is not a director shall, upon request, provide the Secretary of the Exchange with such information as is reasonably requested in order to verify that the prospective committee member meets any specified qualifications.

Section 5.2 Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of six (6) directors, including the Chairman of the Board, the Vice Chairman of the Board and the President and Chief Executive Officer. At least three (3) of the members of the Executive Committee shall be Non-Industry Directors, at least one (1) of whom shall be a Public Director. The Board shall appoint the members of the Executive Committee in accordance with this Section 5.2. The Chairman of the Executive Committee shall be the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Exchange. The Executive Committee shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board of Directors except that the Executive Committee shall not have the powers of the Board of Directors with respect to approving any merger, consolidation, sale of substantially all of the assets or dissolution of the Exchange.

Section 5.3 Nominating Committee. (a) The Nominating Committee shall not act as a committee of the Board of Directors, but rather shall be a committee of the Exchange. The Nominating Committee shall be composed of one (1) representative of a PMM Right, one (1) representative of a CMM Right and one (1) representative of an EAM Right. No officer or employee of the Exchange shall serve on the Nominating Committee. Not less than 60 days, but not more than 75 days, prior to each annual meeting of the Sole LLC Member and holders of Exchange Rights, the Nominating Committee shall select nominees for each Exchange Directorship to be filled. The Board shall appoint the members of the Nominating Committee in accordance with the qualifications prescribed in this Section 5.3.

- (b) A member of the Nominating Committee may not simultaneously serve on the Board of Directors, unless such member is in the final year of his or her term as director and does not stand for reelection to the Board of Directors until such time as he or she is no longer a member of the Nominating Committee.
- (c) The Nominating Committee shall nominate persons for election to the Board of Directors as the Exchange Directors by the holders of Exchange Rights during the annual meeting pursuant to the following:
 - (1) The Nominating Committee shall meet on such dates and at such times as determined by the Committee for the purpose of selecting not less than one (1) nominee for each expiring term and vacancy on the Board of Directors for Exchange Directors.
 - (2) The Nominating Committee will accept recommendations of nominations for an expiring term or vacancy of an Exchange Director from the

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 118 of 136

holders of Exchange Rights entitled to elect such person as provided in Section 3.10(a).

- (3) In the event any nominee named by the Nominating Committee withdraws or becomes ineligible, the Nominating Committee may select an additional nominee to replace the withdrawn or ineligible nominee.
- (d) At all meetings, a quorum for the transaction of business shall consist of a majority of the members of the Nominating Committee. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the committee members present may adjourn the meeting until a quorum is present.

Section 5.4 Corporate Governance Committee. The Corporate Governance Committee shall consist of three (3), and no more than eight (8), Non-Industry Directors, each of whom shall meet the requirements established in the Corporate Governance Committee charter. The Board of Directors shall adopt a charter setting forth the responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee.

Section 5.5 Finance & Audit Committee. The Finance & Audit Committee shall consist of not less than three (3) and no more than five (5), Non-Industry Directors each of whom shall meet the requirements established in the Finance & Audit Committee charter. The Board of Directors shall adopt a charter setting forth the responsibilities of the Finance & Audit Committee.

Section 5.6 Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee shall consist of not less than three (3), and no more than five (5), Non-Industry Directors each of whom shall meet the requirements established in the Compensation Committee charter. The Board of Directors shall adopt a charter setting forth the responsibilities of the Compensation Committee.

Section 5.7 Conduct of Proceedings. Except as otherwise provided in this Constitution, the Rules or by resolution of the Board of Directors, each Committee may determine the manner in which its proceedings shall be conducted.

ARTICLE VI

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

Section 6.1 Right to Indemnification. Each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise involved in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (hereinafter a "proceeding"), by reason of the fact that he or she or a person of whom he or she is the legal representative is or was a director or an officer of the Exchange or is or was serving at the request of the Exchange as a director, officer, employee or agent of any other corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to any employee benefit plan (hereinafter an "indemnitee"), whether the basis of such proceeding is alleged action in an official capacity as a director, officer, employee or agent or in any other capacity while serving as a director, officer, employee or agent, shall be indemnified and

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 119 of 136

held harmless by the Exchange to the fullest extent authorized by the Act, as the same exists or may hereafter be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment, only to the extent that such amendment permits the Exchange to provide broader indemnification rights than the Act permitted the Exchange to provide prior to such amendment), against all expense, liability and loss (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, excise taxes or penalties under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and amounts paid or to be paid in settlement) reasonably incurred by such indemnitee in connection therewith; provided, however, that except as provided in Section 6.3 with respect to proceedings seeking to enforce rights to indemnification, the Exchange shall indemnify any such indemnitee seeking indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such indemnitee only if such proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the Board of Directors.

Section 6.2 Right to Advancement of Expenses. The right to indemnification conferred in Section 6.1 shall include the right to be paid by the Exchange the expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred in defending any such proceeding in advance of its final disposition (hereinafter an "advancement of expenses"); provided, however, that, if the Act requires, an advancement of expenses incurred by an indemnitee in his or her capacity as a director or officer (and not in any other capacity in which service was or is rendered by such indemnitee, including, without limitation, service to an employee benefit plan) shall be made only upon delivery to the Exchange of an undertaking (hereinafter an "undertaking"), by or on behalf of such indemnitee, to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined by final judicial decision from which there is no further right to appeal (hereinafter a "final adjudication") that such indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified for such expenses under this Section 6.2 or otherwise.

Section 6.3 Right of Indemnitee to Bring Suit. If a claim under Section 6.1 or Section 6.2 is not paid in full by the Exchange within thirty (30) days after a written claim has been received by the Exchange, except in the case of a claim for an advancement of expenses, in which case the applicable period shall be twenty (20) days, the indemnitee may at any time thereafter bring suit against the Exchange to recover the unpaid amount of the claim. If successful in whole or in part in any such suit, or in a suit brought by the Exchange to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the indemnitee shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting or defending such suit. In (i) any suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right to indemnification hereunder (but not in a suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right of an advancement of expenses) it shall be a defense that, and (ii) in any suit brought by the Exchange to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the Exchange shall be entitled to recover such expenses upon a final adjudication that, the indemnitee has not met any applicable standard for indemnification set forth in the Act. Neither the failure of the Exchange (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or the Sole LLC Member) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such action that indemnification of the indemnitee is proper in the circumstances because the indemnitee has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in the Act, nor an actual determination by the Exchange (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or the Sole LLC Member) that the indemnitee has not met such applicable standard of conduct, shall create a presumption that the indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of conduct or, in the

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 120 of 136

case of such a suit brought by the indemnitee, be a defense to such suit. In any suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right to indemnification or to an advancement of expenses hereunder, or brought by the Exchange to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the burden of proving that the indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified, or to such advancement of expenses, under this Article VI or otherwise shall be on the Exchange.

Section 6.4 Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The right to indemnification and the advancement of expenses conferred in this Article VI shall not be exclusive of any other right which any person may have or hereafter acquire under any statute, provision of the LLC Agreement, provision of this Constitution, agreement, vote of the Sole LLC Member or disinterested directors or otherwise.

Section 6.5 Insurance. The Exchange may maintain insurance, at its expense, to protect itself and any director, officer, employee or agent of the Exchange or another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any expense, liability or loss, whether or not the Exchange would have the power to indemnify such person against such expense, liability or loss under the law.

Section 6.6 Indemnification of Employees and Agents of the Exchange. The Exchange may, to the extent authorized from time to time by the Board of Directors, grant rights to indemnification, and rights to the advancement of expenses, to any employee or agent of the Exchange to the fullest extent of the provisions of this Article VI with respect to the indemnification and advancement of expenses of directors and officers of the Exchange.

Section 6.7 Contract Rights. The rights to indemnification and to the advancement of expenses conferred in Section 6.1 and Section 6.2 shall be contract rights and such rights shall continue as to an indemnitee who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the indemnitee's heirs, executors and administrators.

ARTICLE VII

EXCHANGE RIGHTS

Section 7.1 Uncertificated Rights. The Exchange Rights shall be uncertificated rights. The Secretary of the Exchange shall maintain a ledger of such rights and shall be informed by holders of Exchange Rights in the event of a transfer of such rights, as set forth herein. Within a reasonable time following the issuance or transfer of any uncertificated rights, the Exchange shall send to the registered owner thereof written confirmation of such transfer or issuance of rights, as the case may be.

Section 7.2 Transfers of Exchange Rights. Transfers of Exchange Rights shall be made only upon the books of the Exchange by the holder, in person or by a duly authorized attorney, and upon written notice to the Exchange duly executed, with such proof of the authenticity of the signature as the Exchange or its agents may reasonably require. The Board of Directors shall have the power to make all such rules and regulations, not

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 121 of 136

inconsistent with the LLC Agreement and this Constitution and the Act, as the Board of Directors may deem appropriate concerning the issue, transfer and registration of Exchange Rights. Directors may appoint one or more transfer agents or registrars of transfers, or both.

ARTICLE VIII

WAIVER OF NOTICE

Section 8.1 Waiver of Notice. Whenever notice is required to be given to any holder of Exchange Rights, the Sole LLC Member or director of the Exchange under any provision of the Act or the LLC Agreement or this Constitution, a written waiver thereof, signed by the person or persons entitled to notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. In the case of a holder of Exchange Rights, such waiver of notice may be signed by such holder's attorney or proxy duly appointed in writing. Attendance of a person at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except when the person attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the holders of Exchange Rights, the Sole LLC Member, directors or members of a committee of directors need be specified in any written waiver of notice.

ARTICLE IX

CHECKS, NOTES, DRAFTS, ETC.

Section 9.1 Checks, Notes, Drafts, Etc.. Checks, notes, drafts, acceptances, bills of exchange and other orders or obligations for the payment of money shall be signed by such officer or officers or person or persons as the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof may from time to time designate.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENTS

Section 10.1 Amendments. This Constitution may be amended, added to, rescinded or repealed at any meeting of the Board of Directors, provided that notice of the proposed change was given in the notice of the meeting and, in the case of the Board of Directors, in a notice given no less than twenty-four hours prior to the meeting provided, however, that (i) if such amendment would alter or change the powers, preferences or special rights of one or more series of Exchange Rights so as to affect them adversely, or increase the aggregate number of authorized PMM Rights or CMM Rights, such amendment shall also be approved by the holders of a majority of such Exchange Rights entitled to vote thereon, in the manner set forth herein and in this Constitution, and to the extent required by Section 6.3(b) of the LLC Agreement, the holders of PMM Rights, voting as a separate class, and CMM Rights, voting as a separate class, in accordance with Section 6.3(b) of the LLC Agreement, and (ii) if such amendment would alter or change the powers, preferences or

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 122 of 136

special rights of the Sole LLC Member's Interest so as to affect it adversely, such amendment shall also be approved by the Sole LLC Member, in the manner set forth in the LLC Agreement and in this Constitution.

ARTICLE XI

REGULATION

Section 11.1 Rulemaking. The Board of Directors may, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the entire Board of Directors, which must include the affirmative vote of either (i) at least one (1) PMM Director and at least one (1) CMM Director, or (ii) at least five (5) Non-Industry Directors, adopt, amend or repeal such Rules as it may deem necessary or proper, including, but not limited to, Rules with respect to:

- (a) The trading of securities on the Exchange;
- (b) The access of Exchange Members to and the conduct of such Exchange Members with the Exchange System and their use of System facilities;
 - (c) Insolvency of the Exchange Members;
- (d) The partners, officers, directors, stockholders and employees of Exchange Members;
 - (e) The business conduct of Exchange Members;
- (f) The business connections of Exchange Members, and their association with or domination by or over corporations or other persons engaged in the securities business;
 - (g) Capital requirements for Exchange Members;
- (h) The arbitration of disputes, claims and controversies between Exchange Members and procedures relating thereto;
- (i) Transfers of Exchange Rights and disposition of the proceeds of such transfers; and
- (j) The conduct and procedure for disciplinary hearings and reviews therefrom.
- Section 11.2 Supervision. The Board of Directors shall have general supervision over the examination of Exchange Members and associated persons in connection with their conduct of business related to being a member of the Exchange.
- (a) The Board of Directors may examine the business conduct and financial condition of Exchange Members and associated persons.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 123 of 136

(b) The Board of Directors may adopt Rules with respect to the Exchange's supervision over partnership and corporate arrangements and over officers of Exchange Members, as well as with respect to the employment, compensation and duties of such employees as it may deem appropriate.

- (c) The Board of Directors shall supervise all matters relating to the collection, dissemination and use of quotations and of reports of prices on the Exchange.
- (d) The Board of Directors shall have the power to approve or disapprove any connection or means of communication with the Exchange and may require the discontinuance of any such connection or means of communication.

Section 11.3 Securities. The Board of Directors may approve the admission of securities for trading on the Exchange or may remove the same from trading on the Exchange.

Section 11.4 Penalties. The Board of Directors may prescribe and impose penalties for violations of this Constitution or Rules for neglect or refusal to comply with orders, directions or decisions of the Board of Directors, or for any other offenses against the Exchange.

ARTICLE XII

PROVISIONS REGARDING EXCHANGE RIGHTS, MEMBERS AND TRADING PRIVILEGES

Section 12.1 PMM Rights.

- (a) Each PMM Right shall have the trading rights and privileges set forth herein and in the Rules for Primary Market Makers. A holder of PMM Rights shall (i) exercise the trading rights and privileges associated with a PMM Right if such holder is approved as a Primary Market Maker under this Constitution and the Rules, or (ii) lease all (but not less than all) the trading rights and privileges to an entity that is approved as a Primary Market Maker under this Constitution and the Rules.
- (b) Each Primary Market Maker shall be the holder of one or more PMM Rights, or be the lessee of trading rights associated with one or more PMM Rights. Each PMM Right shall entitle a Primary Market Maker, who meets the Exchange's eligibility criteria and is in good standing, to enter quotations and orders into the Exchange's System for such Exchange Member's own account and to perform other functions specified in the Rules to facilitate execution and handling of orders placed into the Exchange's System with respect to options classes allocated by the Exchange as provided in the Rules. Each such Exchange Member shall also be permitted to effect proprietary transactions in other options classes traded on the Exchange pursuant to the Rules.
- (c) A PMM Right and/or the trading privileges associated with a PMM Right shall be transferable (in whole but not in part) by the holder of such PMM Right or, in the

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 124 of 136

case of leased trading privileges, with such holder's permission, but only upon the approval of the Exchange as provided in this Constitution and the Rules.

Section 12.2 CMM Rights.

- (a) Each CMM Right shall have the trading rights and privileges as set forth herein and in the Rules for Competitive Market Makers. A holder of CMM Rights shall (i) exercise the trading rights and privileges associated with a CMM Right if such holder is approved as a Competitive Market Maker under this Constitution and the Rules, or (ii) lease all (but not less than all) the trading rights and privileges to an entity that is approved as a Competitive Market Maker under this Constitution and the Rules.
- (b) Each Competitive Market Maker shall be the holder of one or more CMM Rights, or a lessee of the trading rights associated with one or more CMM Rights. Each CMM Right shall entitle a Competitive Market Maker, who meets the Exchange's eligibility criteria and is in good standing, to enter quotations and orders into the Exchange's System for such Exchange Member's own account with respect to options classes allocated by the Exchange as provided in the Rules. Each such Exchange Member shall also be permitted to effect proprietary transactions in other options classes traded on the Exchange pursuant to the Rules.
- (c) A CMM Right and/or the trading privileges associated with a CMM Right shall be transferable (in whole but not in part) by the holder of such CMM Right or, in the case of leased trading privileges, with such holder's permission, but only upon the approval of the Exchange as provided in this Constitution and the Rules.

Section 12.3 EAM Rights.

- (a) Each EAM Right shall have the trading rights and privileges as set forth herein and in the Rules for Electronic Access Members so long as the holder thereof meets the Exchange's eligibility criteria and is in good standing. Each such Exchange Member shall be entitled to (i) enter orders into the Exchange's System, and/or (ii) clear Exchange Transactions.
- (b) The trading privileges associated with an EAM Right shall not be transferable. A holder of EAM Rights may withdraw from the Exchange upon the approval of the Exchange, which shall be given upon a determination that the holder of EAM Rights has satisfied all obligations to the Exchange. Upon such approval and without any payment related thereto, the EAM Rights will be transferred back to the Exchange.
- Section 12.4 Lessee Members. (a) Trading Rights. A holder of PMM Rights and CMM Rights in good standing may lease all (but not less than all) the trading rights and privileges associated with such rights to an approved Exchange Member as provided in Sections 12.1 and 12.2 hereof, subject to and in accordance with such rules and procedures as may be adopted by the Board of Directors.
- (b) Voting Rights. Except with respect to the Core Rights, as defined in the LLC Agreement, which voting rights shall remain with the lessor, under a lease agreement

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 125 of 136

the lessor may retain voting rights with respect to the PMM Rights and CMM Rights or may transfer such voting rights to the lessee.

Section 12.5 Approval of Holders of Exchange Rights. Each holder of an Exchange Right must be approved by the Exchange with respect to each right held by such holder. Any holder of Exchange Rights approved by the Exchange shall not be deemed an Exchange Member unless such holder has also been approved to exercise trading rights and privileges in accordance with this Constitution and the Rules. The good standing of a holder of Exchange Rights may be suspended, terminated or otherwise withdrawn, as provided in the Rules, if any of the requirements for approval set forth therein cease to be maintained, or if such holder violates any agreements with the Exchange or any of the provisions of this Constitution or the Rules.

Section 12.6 Eligibility for Trading Privileges; Members. Exchange Members shall be corporations, partnerships or limited liability companies that meet the requirements for approval as stated in this Constitution and the Rules. Except as otherwise provided in this Constitution and the Rules, such Exchange Members must have as the principal purpose of their ownership of Exchange Rights, or lease of the trading rights and privileges associated with the PMM Rights or CMM Rights, the conduct of a public securities business as defined in the Rules. The good standing of an Exchange Member may be suspended, terminated or otherwise withdrawn, as provided in the Rules, if any of said conditions for approval cease to be maintained or such Exchange Member violates any of its agreements with the Exchange or any of the provisions of this Constitution or the Rules. Unless such an Exchange Member is in good standing, the Exchange Member shall have no rights or trading privileges except as otherwise provided by law, this Constitution or the Rules, shall not hold itself out for any purpose as an Exchange Member, and shall not deal with the Exchange on any basis except as an entity without trading privileges.

Section 12.7 Membership Agreement. No Exchange Member shall be entitled to any privileges thereof until such Exchange Member has agreed to be bound by this Constitution and the Rules by execution of a Membership Agreement. By such agreement such Exchange Member pledges to abide by the same as it has been or shall be from time to time amended

Section 12.8 Registration of Individual Memberships for Organizations. Every individual holder of an Exchange Right or applicant who is or intends to become an executive officer, director, principal shareholder or general partner of an organization engaged or proposed to engage in business as an Exchange Member may apply to register his or her rights for such organization. Additional individual holders of Exchange Rights may register their rights for such an organization in accordance with the Rules. Registration of an individual holder of Exchange Rights for an organization may be withdrawn by the Exchange for any reason that would justify withdrawal of the approval of either the individual, as a holder of Exchange Rights, or the Exchange Member in relation to its trading privileges.

Section 12.9 Acquisition and Transfer of Exchange Rights. Exchange Rights may only be offered for sale and transferred by the owners thereof, or under certain circumstances by the Exchange, as provided in the Rules or in this Constitution.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 126 of 136

ARTICLE XIII

DEFINITION OF TERMS

Section 13.1 Definitions. When used in this Constitution, unless the context otherwise requires:

- (a) The term "the Act" shall mean the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, 6 § 18-101, et seq.
- (b) The term "affiliate" of a person or "affiliated with" another person means a person who, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, another person.
- (c) The term "Board Committees" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1 of this Constitution.
- (d) The term "CMM Directors" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2 of this Constitution.
 - (e) The term "CMM Right" has the meaning set forth in the LLC Agreement.
- (f) The term "Commission" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
- (g) The term "Competitive Market Maker" means an Exchange Member that is approved to exercise trading privileges associated with CMM Rights.
- (h) The term "Constitution" means this Constitution, as may be amended or amended and restated from time to time.
- (i) The term "control" means the power to exercise a controlling influence over the management or policies of a person, unless such power is solely the result of an official position with such person. Any person who owns beneficially, directly or indirectly, more than twenty percent (20%) of the voting power in the election of directors of a corporation, or more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the voting power in the election of directors of any other corporation which directly, or through one or more affiliates, owns beneficially more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the voting power in the election of directors of such corporation, shall be presumed to control such corporation.
- (j) The term "EAM Directors" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2 of this Constitution.
 - (k) The term "EAM Right" has the meaning set forth in the LLC Agreement.
- (l) The term "Electronic Access Member" means an Exchange Member that is approved to exercise trading privileges associated with EAM Rights.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 127 of 136

(m) The term "Exchange" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.1 of this Constitution.

- (n) The term "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended and the rules promulgated thereunder.
- (o) The term "Exchange Member" means an organization that has been approved to exercise trading rights associated with Exchange Rights.
- (p) The term "Exchange Directors" means the PMM Directors, CMM Directors and EAM Directors.
- (q) The term "Exchange Rights" has the meaning set forth in the LLC Agreement.
- (r) The term "Exchange Transaction" means a transaction executed on or through the facilities of the Exchange.
- (s) The term "good standing" means that an Exchange Member is not delinquent respecting Exchange dues, fees or other charges and is not suspended or barred from effecting Exchange Transactions or from association with an Exchange Member either by the Exchange or by means of a statutory disqualification.
- (t) The term "industry representative" means a person who is an officer, director or employee of a broker or dealer or who has been employed in any such capacity at any time within the prior three (3) years, as well as a person who has a consulting or employment relationship with or has provided professional services to the Exchange and a person who had any such relationship or provided any such services to the Exchange at any time within the prior three (3) years.
- (u) The term "LLC Agreement" means the Limited Liability Company Agreement of the Exchange, dated as of November 18, 2004.
- (v) The term "Non-Industry Directors" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2 of this Constitution.
- (w) The term "non-industry representative" means any person that would not be considered an "industry representative," as well as (i) a person affiliated with a broker or dealer that operates solely to assist the securities-related activities of the business of non-member affiliates, (ii) an employee of an entity that is affiliated with a broker or dealer that does not account for a material portion of the revenues of the consolidated entity, and who is primarily engaged in the business of the non-member entity.
- (x) The term "Person" shall mean an individual, partnership (general or limited), joint stock company, corporation, limited liability company, trust or unincorporated organization, or any governmental entity or agency or political subdivision thereof.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 128 of 136

(y) The term "person associated with a holder" or an "associated person" means any partner, officer, director, or branch manager of a holder of Exchange Rights (or any person occupying a similar status or performing similar functions), any person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under common control with such holder of Exchange Rights, or any employee of such holder of Exchange Rights.

- (z) The term "PMM Director" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2 of this Constitution.
- (aa) The term "PMM Rights" has the meaning set forth in the LLC Agreement.
- (bb) The term "Primary Market Maker" means an Exchange Member that is approved to exercise trading privileges associated with PMM Rights.
- (cc) The term "Public Directors" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2 of this Constitution.
- (dd) The term "public representative" means a non-industry representative who has no material business relationship with a broker or dealer or the Exchange.
- (ee) The term "Rules" means the rules of the Exchange as adopted or amended from time to time.
- (ff) The terms "Sole LLC Member" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.1 of this Constitution.
- (gg) The "System" means the electronic system operated by the Exchange that receives and disseminates quotes, executes orders and reports transactions.
- (hh) The terms "Voting Rights" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4 of this Constitution.
- (ii) The term "Whole Board" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.3 of this Constitution.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 129 of 136

Underlining indicates additions; [brackets] indicate deletions

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE

RULES

Chapter 1

Definitions

Rule 100. Definitions

- (a) The following terms, when used in these Rules, shall have the meanings specified in this Chapter 1, unless the context indicates otherwise. Any term defined in Article [I] XIII of the Constitution of ISE, LLC (the "Constitution") and not otherwise defined in this Chapter shall have the meaning assigned in Article [I] XIII of the Constitution.
 - (1) The term "aggregate exercise price" means the exercise price of an options contract multiplied by the number of units of the underlying security covered by the options contract.
 - (2) The term "American-style option" means an options contract that, subject to the provisions of Rule 1100 (relating to the cutoff time for exercise instructions) and to the Rules of the Clearing Corporation, can be exercised on any business day prior to its expiration date and on its expiration date.
 - (3) The term "associated person" or "person associated with a Member" means any partner, officer, director, or branch manager of a Member (or any person occupying a similar status or performing similar functions), any person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under common control with a Member or any employee of a Member.
 - (4) The term "bid" means a quote or limit order to buy one or more options contracts.
 - (5) The term "call" means an options contract under which the holder of the option has the right, in accordance with the terms of the option, to purchase from the Clearing Corporation the number of shares of the underlying security covered by the options contract.
 - (6) The term "class of options" means all options contracts of the same type covering the same underlying security.
 - (7) The term "Clearing Corporation" means The Options Clearing Corporation.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 130 of 136

(8) The term "Clearing Member" means a Member that is selfclearing or an Electronic Access Member that clears Exchange Transactions for other Members of the Exchange.

- (9) The term "closing purchase transaction" means an Exchange Transaction that will reduce or eliminate a short position in an options contract.
- (10) The term "closing writing transaction" means an Exchange Transaction that will reduce or eliminate a long position in an options contract.
- (11) The term "CMM Rights" has the meaning set forth in Article VI of the LLC Agreement.
- [(11)](12) The term "covered short position" means (i) the obligation of a writer of a call option is secured by a "specific deposit" or an "escrow deposit" meeting the conditions of Rule 710(f) or 710(h), respectively, of the Rules of the Clearing Corporation, or the writer holds in the same account as the short position, on a share-for-share basis, a long position either in the underlying security or in an options contract of the same class of options where the exercise price of the options contract in such long position is equal to or less than the exercise price of the options contract in such short position; and (ii) the writer of a put option holds in the same account as the short position, on a share-for-share basis, a long position in an options contract of the same class of options where the exercise price of the options contract in such long position is equal to or greater than the exercise price of the options contract in such short position.
- [(12)](13) The term "discretion" means the authority of a broker or dealer to determine for a customer the type of option, the class or series of options, the number of contracts, or whether options are to be bought or sold.
- (14) The term "EAM Rights" has the meaning set forth in Article VI of the LLC Agreement.
- [(13)](15) The term "European-style option" means an options contract that, subject to the provisions of Rule 1100 (relating to the cutoff time for exercise instructions) and to the Rules of the Clearing Corporation, can be exercised only on its expiration date.
- [(14)](16) The term "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules and regulations thereunder, as amended from time to time.
- (17) The term "Exchange Rights" means the PMM Rights, CMM Rights and EAM Rights collectively.
- [(15)](18) The term "exercise price" means the specified price per unit at which the underlying security may be purchased or sold upon the exercise of an options contract.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 131 of 136

- [(16)](19) The term "Federal Reserve Board" means the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.
- [(17)](20) The terms "he," "him" or "his" shall be deemed to refer to persons of female as well as male gender, and to include organizations, as well as individuals, when the context so requires.
- [(18)](21) The term "long position" means a person's interest as the holder of one or more options contracts.
- (22) The term "LLC Agreement" means the Limited Liability Company Agreement of the Exchange, dated as of November 18, 2004, as amended from time to time.
- (23) The term "Member" means an organization that has been approved to exercise trading rights associated with Exchange Rights.
- [(19)](24) The term "Membership" refers to the trading privileges associated with [a share of Class B Common Stock] Exchange Rights.
- [(20)](25) The term "market makers" refers to "Competitive Market Makers" and "Primary Market Makers" collectively.
- [(21)](26) The term "[m]Market [m]Maker [shares] Rights" refers to [shares of Series B-1 Stock and Series B-2 Stock] PMM Rights and CMM Rights collectively.
- [(22)](27) The term "Non-Customer" means a person or entity that is a broker or dealer in securities.
- [(23)](28) The term "Non-Customer Order" means any order that is not a Public Customer Order as defined in subparagraph [(30)](39) below.
- [(24)](29) The term "offer" means a quote or limit order to sell one or more options contracts.
- [(25)](30) The term "opening purchase transaction" means an Exchange Transaction that will create or increase a long position in an options contract.
- [(26)](31) The term "opening writing transaction" means an Exchange Transaction that will create or increase a short position in an options contract.
- [(27)](32) The term "options contract" means a put or a call issued, or subject to issuance, by the Clearing Corporation pursuant to the Rules of the Clearing Corporation.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 132 of 136

[(28)](33) The term "OPRA" means the Options Price Reporting Authority.

- [(29)](34) The term "order" means a commitment to buy or sell securities as defined in Rule 715 (types of orders).
- [(30)](35) The term "outstanding" means an options contract which has been issued by the Clearing Corporation and has neither been the subject of a closing writing transaction nor has reached its expiration date.
- (36) The term "PMM Rights" has the meaning set forth in Article VI of the LLC Agreement.
- [(31)](37) The term "primary market" means the principal market in which an underlying security is traded.
- [(32)](38) The term "Public Customer" means a person that is not a broker or dealer in securities.
- [(33)](39) The term "Public Customer Order" means an order for the account of a Public Customer.
- [(34)](40) The term "put" means an options contract under which the holder of the option has the right, in accordance with the terms and provisions of the option, to sell to the Clearing Corporation the number of shares of the underlying security covered by the options contract.
- [(35)](41) The term "quote" or "quotation" means a bid or offer entered by a market maker that updates the market maker's previous bid or offer, if any.
- [(36)](42) The term "Rules of the Clearing Corporation" means the Certificate of Incorporation, the By-laws and the Rules of the Clearing Corporation, and all written interpretations thereof, as the same may be in effect from time to time.
- [(37)](43) The term "SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
- [(38)](44) The term "series of options" means all options contracts of the same class having the same exercise price and expiration date.
- [(39)](45) The term "short position" means a person's interest as the writer of one or more options contracts.
- [(40)](46) The term "SRO" means a self-regulatory organization as defined in Section 3(a)(26) of the Exchange Act.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 133 of 136

[(41)](47) The term "type of option" means the classification of an options contract as either a put or a call.

[(42)](48) The term "uncovered" means a short position in an options contract that is not covered.

[(43)](49) The term "underlying security" means the security that the Clearing Corporation shall be obligated to sell (in the case of a call option) or purchase (in the case of a put option) upon the valid exercise of an options contract.

Chapter 2

No change.

Chapter 3

Membership

Rule 300. [Owners of] Market Maker [Shares and Memberships] Rights

- (a) [Member Owners.] Market [m]Maker [shares] Rights may be owned by (i) registered broker-dealers approved as Members of the Exchange according to the requirements contained in this Chapter 3[.
- (b) Non-Member Owners. Market maker shares may be owned by] <u>or (ii)</u> individuals and organizations that are not Members of the Exchange or that are otherwise Members, but do not seek to exercise trading privileges associated with [the shares] <u>such Rights</u> (collectively "non-member owners").
- (b) Non-member owners shall not be permitted to exercise trading privileges on the Exchange with respect to such [shares] <u>Rights</u>, and are not considered Members of the Exchange with respect to such [shares] <u>Rights</u> for any purposes of these Rules. [(1)] Non-member owners of [m]<u>Market</u> [m]<u>Maker</u> [shares] <u>Rights</u> shall lease the trading privileges associated with the [shares] <u>Rights</u> (i.e., the "Membership") to registered broker-dealers approved by the Exchange as Members.
- [(2)](c) Every non-member owner of [m]Market [m]Maker [shares] Rights shall submit a non-member owner application in the form and manner prescribed by the Exchange. Non-member owner applications must be accompanied by a non-refundable application fee. [(3)] Approved non-member owner applicants must complete the transfer of [m]Market [m]Maker [shares] Rights to the applicant within ninety (90) days of the date of approval by the Exchange. Should an approved applicant fail to complete the transfer of a [share] Market Maker Right within ninety (90) days, its approval shall expire unless an extension is granted by the Exchange based on a showing that a transfer is pending or near completion.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 134 of 136

Rules 301 through 306

No change.

Rule 307. Sale and Transfer of Market Maker [Shares] Rights

- (a) The owner of [m]Market [m]Maker [shares] Rights may sell or otherwise transfer ownership of its [shares] Market Maker Rights upon the approval of the Exchange. A sale or other transfer of [m]Market [m]Maker [shares] Rights shall not be effective until an executed purchase or transfer agreement between the owner and an approved transferee has been filed with, and approved by, the Exchange in writing. The Exchange will provide a bulletin board on which interests to sell or purchase such [shares] Market Maker Rights may be posted; however, owners are not required to post interest to sell nor to give preference to posted interests to purchase [shares] Market Maker Rights.
- (b) Whenever one or more of the following conditions exist with respect to [m]Market [m]Maker [shares] Rights, the Exchange may offer the [shares] Rights for sale by posting a notice of such sale on a bulletin board for at least thirty (30) days:
- (1) An individual owner of [m]Market [m]Maker [shares] Rights has died or has been declared legally incompetent, and the legal representative of such owner has failed to consummate a transfer of the [shares] Rights within six (6) months of the owner's death or incompetence or within such extended time as may have been granted by the Exchange;
- (2) An owner's good standing has been terminated or has been suspended and has failed to be reinstated at the expiration of the period of suspension including any extension of such period that may have been granted by the Exchange; and
- (3) An owner that is an organization has been dissolved, formally or informally, and no transfer of its [shares] <u>Market Maker Rights</u> has been accomplished within six (6) months of the dissolution or within such extended time as may have been granted by the Exchange.
- (4) An owner exceeds the concentration limitations contained in the [Constitution] <u>LLC Agreement or Rule 303</u>.

Supplementary Material to Rule 307

.01 Pursuant to paragraph (a) above, the Exchange shall either approve or disapprove an executed transfer agreement between an owner and an approved applicant within thirty (30) days of receipt of the agreement. A transfer agreement may be disapproved under the following circumstances: (i) the contract attempts to transfer only part of the rights associated with a [m]Market [m]Maker [share] Right; or (ii) the transfer would result in the transferee exceeding the ownership concentration limits contained in [Section 13.10 of] the [Constitution] LLC Agreement or Rules, or would otherwise violate the Exchange's Rules.

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 135 of 136

The owner or an approved applicant that is a party to an executed transfer agreement that is denied approval may appeal the Exchange's decision under Chapter 17 (Hearings and Review).

Rule 308. Leasing Memberships

The owner of [m]Market [m]Maker [shares] Rights in good standing may lease a market maker Membership to a Member, and a lessee of a market maker Membership in good standing may sublease such Membership with the permission of the owner.

- (a) A Membership may only be leased to a Member of the Exchange that has been approved to conduct the appropriate market making activities.
- (b) Lease agreements, which may not become effective until approved by the Exchange in writing, shall include provisions covering:
 - (1) the duration of the lease arrangement;
 - (2) the consideration to be paid by the lessee;
 - (3) the assignability of the respective interests of the lessee and lessor in such lease agreement; and
 - (4) as between the parties, which party shall exercise the voting rights of the Membership and which party shall provide the funds necessary to satisfy all applicable Exchange dues, fees and other charges.
- (c) Any division of rights and responsibilities between the owner and lessee shall not affect the obligation of the owner to pay all amounts due the Exchange upon default of the lessee.

Rule 309. Registration of Memberships by Individuals for Members

- (a) An individual owner of [m]Market [m]Maker [shares] Rights that is an executive officer, director, principal shareholder or general partner of a registered broker-dealer that is or proposes to become a Member of the Exchange, may register his Membership for such broker-dealer by filing an application in the form prescribed by the Exchange.
- (b) The registration of a Membership for a Member by an individual may be withdrawn by the Exchange for any reason that would justify withdrawal of the approval of the individual as an owner of a Membership.
- (c) Upon the death, retirement, withdrawal or resignation from a Member of an individual whose Membership is registered for the organization which leaves the organization without a Membership, the Exchange may permit the organization to continue

Date Submitted: January 12, 2006

Page 136 of 136

to act as a Member in good standing for such period as the Exchange deems reasonably necessary to enable the organization to acquire a Membership.

Rule 310. Dissolution and Liquidation of Members

No change.

Rule 311. Obligations of Terminating Members and Transferors of Market Maker [Shares] Rights and Memberships

- (a) Every Member that transfers a Membership pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter must be current in all filings and payments of dues, fees and charges relating to that Membership, including filing fees and charges required by the SEC and Securities Investor Protection Corporation. If a Member fails to make all such filings, or to pay all such dues, fees and charges, the Exchange may, notwithstanding the other applicable provisions of this Chapter, delay the effectiveness of the Membership for the transferee, until such failures have been remedied.
- (b) Every owner that transfers its [m]Market [m]Maker [shares] Rights or Memberships pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter must be current in all payments of dues, fees and charges relating to those [shares] Rights or Memberships. If an owner fails to pay all such dues, fees and charges, the Exchange may, notwithstanding the other applicable provisions of this Chapter, delay the effectiveness of the transfer of the [shares] Rights or of the Memberships until such failures have been remedied.

Rule 312. Limitation on Affiliation between the Exchange and Members

Without prior SEC approval, the Exchange or any entity with which it is affiliated shall not, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, acquire or maintain an ownership interest in a Member or non-member owner. In addition, a Member or non-member owner shall not be or become an affiliate of the Exchange, or an affiliate of any affiliate of the Exchange. Nothing in this rule shall prohibit a Member or non-member owner from acquiring or holding any equity interest in ISE Holdings, Inc. that is permitted by the Certificate of Incorporation of ISE Holdings, Inc. In addition, nothing in this Rule shall prohibit any Member from being or becoming an affiliate of the Exchange or an affiliate of any affiliate of the Exchange solely by reason of any officer, director or partner of such Member being or becoming an Exchange Director (as defined in the Constitution) pursuant to the Constitution.

Chapters 4 - 20

No change.